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Carbon County School District One

Educational Excellence

615 Rodeo e L (307) 328-9200
Rawlins, WY 82301 S T (307) 328-9258 Fax

O i\ www.crbl.k12.wy.us

December 12, 2013

To the Board Trustees, and Administrators and Conitywu
Carbon County School District No. 1
Rawlins, Wyoming

Wyoming Uniform Municipal Fiscal Procedures Act uggs annual audits of school districts. The act
states in W.S. 16-4-121 that “school audits shalcbmpleted by November 15 following the end of
the fiscal year.” The act also states in W.S. 122 that “audits shall be filed with the state
Department of Education on or before December 16ving the end of the audited fiscal year.”

Pursuant to this requirement, the Annual FinarRegort of Carbon County School District No. 1 (the
District) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2GLBareby submitted.

Management assumes full responsibility for the detepess and reliability of the information
contained in this report. To provide a reasonablgs for making these representations, the Di'stric
management has established a comprehensive inteonsiol framework that is designed both to
protect the government's assets from loss, theftrisuse, and to compile sufficient reliable
information for the preparation of the Districtmdncial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United Stdté&merica (GAAP). Because the cost of internal
controls should not exceed the anticipated benéifiesDistrict’'s comprehensive framework of intdrna
controls has been designed to provide reasonatbierréghan absolute assurance that the financial
statements will be free from material misstatemefd. management, we assert that, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, this financial report is coete and reliable in all material respects.

Porter, Muirhead, Cornia & Howard, Certified PubWaccountants, have issued an unmodified
(“clean”) opinion on the District’'s financial staents for the year ended June 30, 2013. The
independent auditor's report is located at the tfroh the financial section of this report. The
independent audit of the District’s financial staents was part of a broader, federally mandated
“Single Audit” designed to meet the special needisfedleral grantor agencies. The standards
governing Single Audit engagements require the peddent auditor to report not only on the fair
presentation of the financial statements, but alsahe audited government’s internal controls and
compliance with legal requirements, with speciapbasis on internal controls and legal requirements
involving the administration of federal awards. €$k reports are included in the Grant Compliance
Section of this report.



GAAP requires that management provide a narrativieoduction, overview and analysis to
accompany the financial statements in the form Meaagement’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A).
This letter of transmittal is designed to complettbe MD&A and should be read in conjunction with
it. The District's MD&A can be found immediatelglfowing the report of the independent auditors,
beginning on page 4.

DISTRICT PROFILE

Carbon County School District was formed Januar¥8F5. The District boundary includes a major
part of Carbon County and a small area of Sweetwadeinty. Today the District is responsible for
educating approximately 1870 children in four difie¢ communities Rawlins, Baggs, Sinclair and
Bairoil. School configuration is different in eactmmunity Rawlins has one K-5 elementary school,
one 6-8 middle school, one 9-12 alternative hidiost and one 9-12 high school. Baggs has one K-
12 school facility. Sinclair has one K-5 elementschool. Bairoil has one K-5 elementary school.

The District is responsible for providing an edumatto children living within its boundaries. The
District provides educational services to 74% aof thildren in Carbon County. The District is
responsible for building, operating, and maintagnschool facilities; developing and maintaining
approved education programs and courses of studyyding academic and vocational programs,
bilingual programs and programs for special neéilsiren and providing transportation and nutrition
services to students in accordance with Distrtetesand federal requirements.

ECONOMIC CONDITION

Wyoming is the ninth largest state in the U.S. v@#h914 square miles. This provides Wyoming with
abundance of natural resources. In 2012 Wyoming thhe number one producer of coal and ranks
highest in mining employment. Wyoming producesmasch coal as the next six producing states
combined. Natural gas production was third in tlaéion and crude oil was eighth in the nation.
Wyoming also possesses the largest known resert®md in the world. With Wyoming abundant
source of wind, power generation from wind turbirealso becoming a huge industry. The royalties
from all the minerals and energy production hasdiaghted funding source for schools. With our
small statewide population of 576,000 and 90,99@lestts, the assessment and royalties provide an
excellent funding source for schools and keepptbperty tax on homes, agriculture, commercial and
industrial land at a very affordable rate for @tiz of Wyoming.

Carbon County has 7,964 square miles about eigsepeof Wyoming. In 2009 the County ranked
sixth among the counties in Wyoming in natural gesluction and tenth in crude oil. Carbon County
has approximately 200 operating wind turbines W#l0 megawatts of capacity. There are substantial
new wind turbine generation facilities proposed angermitting in Carbon County. The Chokecherry
and Sierra Madre Wind Energy Project is one ofwed’s largest proposed wind power plants with
up to 1,000 turbines to be located south of Rawl&sth projects are currently in the permittingapé
before construction can start. Many large gasaintbmpanies have operations in Carbon County.

Major employers in Carbon County are: Sinclair @iinery, Wyoming State Penitentiary, Memorial
Hospital of Carbon County, and County and City gowgent.



Since 2000 Carbon County has had a stable populafith very modest increases and decreases in
population that are trending upward. The Schostridt had a peek enrollment in the 1980’s and 90’s
with the population again trending upward since £20INow showing stable to slightly increasing
growth.

STATE SCHOOL FUNDING

The Wyoming Constitution declared that public ediwcais a fundamental right. The Wyoming
Supreme Court decisions have upheld and definedrélgiuirement in several court cases most recent
notable ones are Campbell 1 — (1995), Campbell(Rebruary 2001), Campbell 3 — (October 2001)
and Campbell 4 — (2008). The Wyoming School FotindaProgram provides a guaranteed level of
funding to every Wyoming public school districthi$ “Guarantee” is essentially a block grant and is
based on a number of factors - the most importamthich is the number of students enrolled in the
district in the prior year.

Other components having a significant impact ons&ridt’s guarantee include special education and
pupil transportation costs incurred in the priorayend the number, size and location of certain
statutorily defined “small schools” operated by thstrict. Very small school districts meeting te@n
enrollment criteria may qualify for additional fund.

Once a district’s guarantee is established, thadifg level is compared to the district’'s availaldeal
revenue sources. If a district’'s local revenua®s tout to be less than its Guarantee, the state of
Wyoming makes up the difference through a serieentitlement payments distributed to the district
throughout the school year.

A few school districts, on the other hand, haveeasdo local revenues in excess of their Guarantees
These districts must rebate the excess to the staif¥yoming — a process known as recapture. All

recaptured monies flow into a Foundation Programdfand are eventually redistributed to those

districts receiving entitlement payments from ttedes

Carbon County School District No. 1 is a recaptlisgrict.
LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

The District has a very conservative approach tgbting and for the last several years has maedain
an ending fund balance that is at the maximum latigdwable by Wyoming law and also maintains a
fund balance that was saved before the currentirigndodel (1997) was develop. This along with the
State’s progressing funding of Education in Wyomings allow the District to continually fund
improvements in programs, and facilities in theties

COMPONENT UNITS

The Board of Cooperative Higher Education Servi@®CHES) operating as The Carbon County
Higher Education Center (CCHEC) and the Carbon Go&chool District #1 Recreation Board are
component units of the District with their finariciaformation combined into the District’'s audit.

Members of the Board of Trustees also sit as mesriifethe component units’ Board.



CCHEC serves the higher education needs of our eomtynand provides high quality training
programs through the cooperative efforts of thetrigis community, industry and local government.
CCHEC provides community education courses, vooati@nd industry training and college credit
courses.

The Recreation Board receives a one mill levy @nabsessed value in the District and provides grant
to agencies and groups within the District to emleatne recreational opportunities of our citizend a
assist in the operational needs of recreationdltfas in the District.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

The new Rawlins High School which was previouslypraped for funding by the School Facilities
Department along with the enhancements approvethéwoters of the District is currently in the
schematic design phase with a start date of castsiruin the fall of 2014 with an estimated final
completion date of fall of 2017. The new CCHEGifgcapproved by the voters is now in construction
with a completion date to serve students in tHeofe2014.
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PORTER, MUIRHEAD, CORNIA & HOWARD

(A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants)

MC

123 West First Street  Suite 800 P.O.Box 2750 Casper, Wyoming 82602  (307) 265-4311 Fax (307) 265-5180

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Superintendent and
Board of Trustees
Carbon County School District #1

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statésmeh the governmental activities, the businesgtyp
activities, the discretely presented componentsurétach major fund, and the aggregate remaining fun
information of the Carbon County School District #% of and for the year ended June 30, 2013,hencktated
notes to the financial statements, which colletyivamprise the Carbon County School District #hasic
financial statements as listed in the table of entst

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Staents

Management is responsible for the preparation ambfesentation of these financial statementsoolance
with accounting principles generally accepted ie tbnited States of America; this includes the degsig
implementation, and maintenance of internal contla@vant to the preparation and fair presentatidimancial
statements that are free from material misstatemnaér@ther due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on thiisencial statements based on our audit. We coeduactr
audit in accordance with auditing standards gelyesatepted in the United States of America andsthadards
applicable to financial audits contained@overnment Auditing Standardssued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. Those standards requirewtbgtlan and perform the audit to obtain reasonag$eirance
about whether the financial statements are fram friaterial misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaimi evidence about the amounts and disclosurdhen
financial statements. The procedures selected depethe auditor's judgment, including the assessrokthe
risks of material misstatement of the financiatesteents, whether due to fraud or error. In makhnggé risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal cartedant to the entity’s preparation and fair preation of the
financial statements in order to design audit ptloces that are appropriate in the circumstancesydduor the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiserd the entity's internal control. Accordinglye express

no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating appropriateness of accounting policies usedthed
reasonableness of significant accounting estimatade by management, as well as evaluating the lbvera
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamedfficient and appropriate to provide a basisolur audit
opinions.



Honorable Superintendent and
Board of Trustees

Carbon County School District #1

Page 2

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referredbove present fairly, in all material respedts, tespective
financial position of the governmental activititse business-type activities, the discretely presstaomponent
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaiuing information of the Carbon County School Détt#1,

as of June 30, 2013, and the respective chandésimcial position, and where applicable, cash fdahereof
for the year then ended in accordance with accogntrinciples generally accepted in the United estaif

America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the tebhi States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparidommation as listed in the table of contents besgntéed to
supplement the basic financial statements. Sucbrrirdtion, although not a part of the basic financia
statements, is required by the Governmental Ac@ogrBtandards Board who considers it to be an &@aben
part of financial reporting for placing the basicaicial statements in an appropriate operati@winomic, or
historical context.

We have applied certain limited procedures to mamant's discussion and analysis in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the Uni¢ates of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing thenmafiton and comparing the information for consisyenc
with management’s responses to our inquiries, #sctfinancial statements, and other knowledge lotaied
during our audit of the basic financial statemeWs. do not express an opinion or provide any asseran the
information because the limited procedures do movtige us with sufficient evidence to express amiop or
provide any assurance.

The budgetary comparison information as listechintable of contents is the responsibility of mamagnt and
was derived from and relates directly to the undegl accounting and other records used to prepardoasic
financial statements. Such information has beejestddl to the auditing procedures applied in thditaaf the
basic financial statements and certain additiomalcgdures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accountingdaother records used to prepare the basic finlancia
statements or to the basic financial statementngblves, and other additional procedures in acooelavith
auditing standards generally accepted in the UrStates of America. In our opinion, the budgetamnparison
information is fairly stated, in all material resf® in relation to the basic financial statemests whole.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of formapgnions on the financial statements that colletyiv
comprise the Carbon County School District #1'sibdmancial statements. The budgetary comparison
information and schedule of expenditures of fedavedrds, as required by Office of Management andigBu
Circular A-133,Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Peawétpresented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basméial statements.



Honorable Superintendent and
Board of Trustees

Carbon County School District #1

Page 3

The budgetary comparison information and schediéxpenditures of federal awards are the respditgibf
management and were derived from and relate diréztthe underlying accounting and other recordsiue
prepare the basic financial statements. Such irdtom has been subjected to the auditing procedymelied in
the audit of the basic financial statements andameradditional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the ungary accounting and other records used to preperdasic
financial statements or to the basic financial esteints themselves, and other additional procedures
accordance with auditing standards generally aedejt the United States of America. In our opinitmg
budgetary comparison information and schedule gfeesitures of federal awards are fairly statedalin
material respects, in relation to the basic finahsiatements as a whole.

The statistical section has not been subjectelet@uditing procedures applied in the audit ofthsic financial
statements, and accordingly, we do not exprespi@on or provide any assurances on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Stards

In accordance witlisovernment Auditing Standardse have also issued our report dated Decembe2(ii3
on our consideration of the Carbon County Schostrai #1's internal control over financial repogdi and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisiafslaws, regulations, contracts, and grant agredsnand
other matters. The purpose of that report is teriles the scope of our testing of internal contnegr financial
reporting and compliance and the results of thstirtg, and not to provide an opinion on internattoal over
financial reporting or on compliance. That reparian integral part of an audit performed in accocdawith
Government Auditing Standarda considering Carbon County School District #irgernal control over

financial reporting and compliance.
i, Mustead) Gomin & Hpoand

Porter, Muirhead, Cornia & Howard
Certified Public Accountants

Casper, Wyoming
December 12, 2013



CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2013
(UNAUDITED)

As management of Carbon County School District Nave offer readers of the District’'s financialtstaents
this narrative overview and analysis of the finaheictivities of the District for the year endechdB80, 2013.
We encourage readers to consider the informatiesgmted here in conjunction with the District'saficial
statements, notes to the financial statements andus supplementary information, which follow teection.

Financial Highlights

The District’s total combined net position was $®,142 at June 30, 2013 which compares to $4%42%t
the beginning of the fiscal year as restated, arease of eight percent.

During the year, the District's total primary gomerent expenses were $3,732,150 less than $34,489,69
generated in taxes and other revenues for goveltairegtivities.

The District had $30,507,547 in expenses relatedawernmental activities; of which $3,763,843 oégh
expenses were offset by program specific chargesefwices or grants and contributions.

The District decreased its outstanding long-terrot diyy $854,411. The outstanding long-term debluthes
$27,583,029 in bonds for construction that is peyalver 16 years and $2,524 retainage payable rdoae
year.

The District made a recapture payment of $5,217t@9B6e State Foundation Program for the 2012 3Z3tal
year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to sesvanaintroduction to the District’s basic financitements.
The District's basic financial statements are casepr of three components: 1) government-wide fifen
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 8sno the financial statements. This report atsttains other
supplementary information in addition to the bdsiancial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statementsThe government-wide financial statements ardégded to provide
readers with a broad overview of the District’safices, in a manner similar to a private-sectomass.

The statement of net position presents informatonall of the District's assets and liabilities, thvithe
difference between the two reported as net positlOwer time, increases or decreases in net positiay serve
as a useful indicator of whether the financial fposiof the District is improving or deteriorating-lowever,
fluctuations from year to year need to be reviewddht of the timing of funding.

The statement of activities presents informatiarelbof the current year’s revenues and expensgardless of
when cash is received or paid. Thus, revenuesapenses are reported in this statement for s@nesithat
will only result in cash flows in future fiscal peds.

Both of the District's government-wide financiahttments distinguish the functions of the Distastbeing
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmamizenues (governmental activities) as opposdiliginess-
type activities that are intended to recover allaosignificant portion of their costs through u$ees and
charges. The District has only one business-tgfigity: the enterprise fund - Food Service.



CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2013
(UNAUDITED)

Fund financial statements A fund is a grouping of related accounts thatised to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for spedifidtias or objectives. The District, like othetate and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure andrgdmate compliance with finance-related infornmatio
about the District's most significant funds.

All of the funds of the District can be divideddnthree categories: governmental funds, propridiangds and
fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds Governmental funds are used to account for dafigrthe same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide fiicial statements. However, unlike the governmeadew
financial statements, governmental fund financiatesnents focus on how money flows into and outhote
funds and the balances left at year-end availablsgending in future periods. Such informatioryrna useful

in evaluating a government’s near-term financirguireements. Governmental fund information help&deine
whether there are more or fewer financial resouticascan be spent in the near future to finanaea&tibnal
programs. The relationship (or differences) betwgevernmental activities reported in the Statenwdrtlet
position and the Statement of Activities and thegegomental funds are reconciled in the financiateshents.
The general fund, major maintenance, capital coostm, grants, depreciation, and debt service uack
considered major funds and are reported as seganiat®ns in the fund financial statements.

Proprietary funds Proprietary funds are used to account for sesvicewhich the District charges participants
a fee. These funds, like the government-wide statdsn provide both long-term and short-term finahci
information. The Enterprise Fund - Food Serviciésonly fund in this category for the District.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resouhedd for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected ie tjovernment-wide financial statements because the
resources of those funds are not available to stipip® District's own programs. The District is ttrastee, or
fiduciary, for these funds and is responsible fuswging that the assets reported in these fundgsa for their
intended purposes. All of the District’s fiduciamgtivities are reported in a separate statemefitoiary net
position and a statement of changes in fiduciatyposition. The District has two funds in this gy, The
Scholarship Fund (a Private Purpose Trust fund)tbedbtudent Activities Fund.

Notes to the financial statement§.he notes provide additional information that ssential to a complete
understanding of the data provided in the goverrmahe and fund financial statements.

Other information

In addition to the basic financial statements amtbmpanying notes, this report also presents cerégjuired
supplementary information that further explains angports the information in the financial statetaen



CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2013
(UNAUDITED)

Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole

The Statement of Net position provides the persgedf the District as a whole. The following prdes a
summary of the District's net position at June 201 3:

Condensed Statements of Net position

2011-201; 2012-201. 2011-201; 2012-201. 2011-201; 2012-201.
Governmental
Activities as  Governmental Business-Typt Business-Typ:
restated Activities Activities Activities Total Total
Current and other
assets $38,607,803 $39,495,249 $ 103,544 $ 156,190 $38,711,347 $39,651,439
Capital assets 41,982,573 43,655,655 12,057 6,734 41,994,630 43,662,389
Total assets 80,590,376 83,150,904 115,601 162,924 80,705,977 83,313,828
Other liabilities 1,773,096 1,362,499 5,137 1,016 1,778,233 1,363,515
Long-term liabilities 29,202,196 28,441,171 - - 29,202,196 28,441,171
Total liabilities 30,975,292 29,803,670 5,137 1,016 30,980,429 29,804,686
Invested in capital
assets 41,227,130 41,264,012 12,057 6,734 41,239,187 41,270,746
net of related debt
Restricted
Wyoming Statute 3,896,421 6,869,277 - - 3,896,421 6,869,277
Donors 172,505 111,743 - - 172,505 111,743
Unrestricted 4,319,028 5,102,202 98,407 155,174 4,417,435 5,257,376

Total net position $49,615,084 $53,347,234 $ 110,464 $ 161,908 $49,725,548 $53,509,142

The net investment in capital assets is $41,270,&dhéch is the net book value of capital assetg.(éand,
buildings, equipment) less any related debt useakttire those assets that is still outstandin§20891,643.
The District uses these capital assets to prowdéces to students; consequently, these assetotevailable
for future spending. Although the District's inte®nt in its capital assets is reported net oftedlalebt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to teizagebt must be provided from other sources exoephe
retainage payable related to the District’s comsibn in progress. Usually, an additional portiof the
District’s net position represents resources thasabject to external restrictions on how they fbayised. The
remaining balance of unrestricted net position$6r257,377, may be used to meet the District’'s omgo
obligations. This surplus is not an indication ttie District has significant resources availableneet financial
obligations next year, but rather the result ofihngvong-term commitments that are less than ctigren
available resources.



CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2013
(UNAUDITED)

For governmental activities, the District’s tota&tmosition increased by $3,732,150 during the peaed June
30, 2013. The total cost of all governmental atitis this year was $30,507,547 and of the busitgss
activity was $802,959. The amount that taxpayeril gar these activities through property taxes was
$30,304,361 net of recapture in the amount of $5,105.

Changes in Net position

2011-2012 2012-2013 2011-2012 2012-2013 2011-2012 2012-2
As restated
Governmental-Type Activities  Business-Type Activities Total Total
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 46,5585 $ 47,078 $ 271,285 $ 258,198 $ 317,870 $ 305,276
Operating grants
and contributions 3,486,883 2,594,495 358,384 344,803 3,845,267 2,939,298
Capital grants 970,573 1,122,270 - - 970,573 1,122,270
General revenues:
Taxes 31,886,605 35,521,556 - - 31,886,605 35,521,556
Investments 32,224 30,449 269 131 32,493 30,580
Recapture payment (5,268,576) (5,217,195) - - (5,268,576) (5,217,195)
Miscellaneous 161,764 391,044 599 1,271 162,363 392,315
Total revenues 31,316,058 34,489,697 630,537 604,403 31,946,595 35,094,100
Expenses:
Regular instruction 11,879,454 12,070,505 - - 11,879,454 12,070,505
Special ed instruction 5,606,923 5,218,292 - - 5,606,923 5,218,292
Pupil services 1,740,359 1,891,463 - - 1,740,359 1,891,463
Instructional staff
services 1,107,401 816,221 - - 1,107,401 816,221
General admin services 1,033,443 1,018,397 - - 1,033,443 1,018,397
School admin services 1,564,289 1,665,402 - - 1,564,289 1,665,402
Business services 591,919 407,196 - - 591,919 407,196
O&M of plant services 4,114,965 4,515,369 - - 4,114,965 4,515,369
Pupil transportation 1,301,515 1,355,030 - - 1,301,515 1,355,030
Central services 1,350,510 478,467 - - 1,350,510 478,467
Other support services 173,478 117,736 - - 173,478 117,736
IBNR claim costs 350,446 - - - 350,446 -
Interest on long-term
debt 41,760 953,469 - - 41,760 953,469
Nutrition services - - 803,904 802,959 803,904 802,959
Total expenses 30,856,462 30,507,547 803,904 802,959 31,660,366 31,310,506
Excess (deficiency)
of revenues over
expenditures 459,596 3,982,150 (173,367) (198,556) 286,229 3,783,594
Transfers (150,000) (250,000) 150,000 250,000 - -
Change in net position 309,596 3,732,150 (23,367) 51,444 286,229 3,783,594
Beginning net position 49,305,488 49,615,084 133,831 110,464 49,439,319 49,725,548
Ending net position $49,615,084 $ 53,347,234 $ 110,464 $ 161,908 $ 49,725,548 $ 53,509,142




CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2013
(UNAUDITED)

Carbon County School District #1
Revenues by Source Governmental Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2013
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Carbon County School District #1
Expenses by Function - Governmental Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2013
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2013
(UNAUDITED)

Financial Analysis of the District’'s Funds

Governmental Funds

Revenues:
General fund revenues, net of recapture paymesrgased to $26,858,278 in FY 2013 from $26,546i0 FY
2012 due to an increase in collections of taxes.

In comparison to the prior year, major maintenaesenues from the State of Wyoming increased by 348.
This increase is due to the change in the Statdirfigrformula and percentage funding level eachrbien to
fund the maintenance allocation and the additipeatentage funding received for our new elemeriaitging
over 5 years to receive full major maintenance ifiog.d

Food Service Fund:

The total Food Service fund revenues for 2013 64,403, an increase of $26,134 from the prior.yEae
expenses incurred to provide this program increage$b45 from the prior year. The Food Service foad a
net loss before transfers of $198,556 in 2013, @awbto a net loss before transfers of $173,3&@D12.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets:

The District's investment in capital assets forgtsernmental activities as of June 30, 2013 isGBER655 (net
of accumulated depreciation). This investment ipited assets includes land, site improvementsdimgk and
equipment (which include vehicles and buses).

District’'s Capital Assets Net of Depreciation (Govenmental Activities)

As restated
2011-201; 2012-201.

Land $ 934579 $ 934,579
Construction in progress 400,390 1,708,644
Buildings and improvements 39,429,172 39,820,086
Vehicles 911,323 725,267
Furniture and equipment 307,109 467,079

Total $41,982,573 $43,655,655

Additional information regarding the District’s dtg) assets can be found in the Notes to Finar@tialements
page 34.

The District is currently in the design phase afieav Rawlins High School that is funded by the Wyagni
School Facilities Commission with enhancements éandy the bond approved by the voters of the Bistri
Construction of the new school is scheduled td gtahe fall of 2014 and is expected to be congueh 2017.
The new BOCHES building that was funded by the bignid construction with an estimated completioteda
fall of 2014.



CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2013
(UNAUDITED)

Long-Term Debt:

The following is a summary of debt transactionsated to capital leases, Series 2012 bonds, andiextcr
compensated absences of the District for the yededkJune 30, 2013:

Debt outstanding at July 1, 2012 $29,202,196
New debt issued 386,747
Debt retired 1,147,772

Debt outstanding at June 30, 2013 $28,441,171

Budgetary information

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, théribisamended its 2012-13 budget to decrease thergk
fund’s general support by $400,000 and increasdédibg and acquisition functions and payment to B{ES
by $250,000, and $500,000 functions, respectivétyaddition, the District increased the Depreoiatfund’s
facilities acquisition and construction services¥$0,000, and Food Service fund by $100,000.

Factors Affecting the District's Future

Factors that may impact the District’s future imt#u 1) Increased enrollment 2) Student enrollmeneeding
building capacity, and 3) Construction of new sdhmdldings. Impact to the District regarding thdssues
will be dependent upon actions taken by the ScRaailities Commission. The District may be reqdite
alter scenarios and modify facilities in a reactioode to the School Facilities Commission's actions

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide ouizeins, taxpayers, customers and creditors witlerzeigl
overview of the District's finances as well as destoate accountability for funds the District reess.
Questions concerning any of the information prodide this report or requests for additional infotima
should be addressed to David Horner, Business Mainé#5 Rodeo Street, Rawlins, Wyoming 82301.

Remainder of page left blank intentionally
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

STATEMENT OF NET POSITIOI

June 30, 201
Primary Governmer Component Uni
Governmenta Business-Typt BOCHES Recreatior
Activities Activities Total Board
ASSETS
Current asse
Cash and cash equivale $ 11,513,712 $ 140,390 $ 11,654,102 $ 1,773,213 $ 1,257,449
Cash held by fiscal age 1,280,853 - 1,280,853 4,054 1,959
Investment: 1,660,884 - 1,660,884 1,552,270 -
Restricted investmer 23,681,903 - 23,681,903 - -
Property taxes receival 528,905 - 528,905 45,957 12,021
Accounts receivab 56,482 - 56,482 32,129 -
Due from other governmel 739,206 7,956 747,162 - -
Internal balance 3,034 (3,034) - - -
Inventory 30,270 10,878 41,148 167,341 -
Capital assets not deprecie
Land 934,579 - 934,579 165,168 -
Construction in progre 1,708,644 - 1,708,644 - -
Capital assets, net
accumulated depreciati
Buildings and improvemer 39,820,086 - 39,820,086 88,455 -
Vehicles 725,267 - 725,267 55,014 -
Furniture and equipme 467,079 6,734 473,813 23,991 -
Total asse’ 83,150,904 162,924 83,313,828 3,907,592 1,271,429
LIABILITIES
Current liabilitie:
Accounts payab 350,797 1,016 351,813 48,249 -
Accrued salaries payal 1,011,702 - 1,011,702 8,561 -
Unearned revenue - - - 26,292 -
Non-current liabilitie
Due within one ye: 1,413,420 - 1,413,420 7,245 -
Due in more than one ye 27,027,751 - 27,027,751 44,331 -
Total liabilities 29,803,670 1,016 29,804,686 134,678 -
NET POSITION
Invested in capital asse 41,264,012 6,734 41,270,746 312,846 -
net of related de
Restricted by Wyomir
state statutt 6,869,277 - 6,869,277 - 1,271,429
Restricted by dono 111,743 - 111,743 - -
Unrestricter 5,102,202 155,174 5,257,376 3,460,068 -
Total net position $ 53,347,234 $ 161,908 $ 53,509,142 $ 3,772,914 $ 1,271,429

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
12



CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges fc Grants anc Grants anc
Expense Services Contribution: Contribution:
Function/Progran
Governmental activitie
Instructior
Regular instructiol $ 12,070,505 $ 47,078 % 254,190 $ -
Special education instructi 5,218,292 - 2,187,467 -
Support service
Pupil service: 1,891,463 - - -
Instructional staff service 816,221 - - -
General administration servic 1,018,397 - 21,429 -
School administration servic 1,665,402 - - -
Business service 407,196 - - -
Operation and maintenance
plant service: 4,515,369 - 131,409 -
Pupil transportation servici 1,355,030 - - -
Central service 478,467 - - 1,122,270
Other support servic 117,736 - - -
Interest on long-term de 953,469 - - -
Total governmental activiti 30,507,547 47,078 2,594,495 1,122,270
Business-type activitit
Food service fun 802,959 258,198 344,803 -
Total business-type activiti¢ 802,959 258,198 344,803 -
Total primary governme $ 31,310,506 $ 305,276 $ 2,939,298 $ 1,122,270
Component Un
BOCHES $ 2,761,771 $ 250,436 $ 18,050 -
Recreation Boar 743,659 - - -
Total component ur $ 3505430 $ 250,436 $ 18,050 §$ -
General revenu
Taxe

Property taxes, levied for general purpt
Property taxes, levied for debt servi
Property taxes, levied for specific purpc
Major building and facility maintenanc
Recreatior
BOCHES
Recapture tax payme
Unrestricted investment earnin
Unrestricted miscellaneous reve
Transfer
Total general revenut

Change in net asse

Net position - beginning of ye:
Prior period adjustme
Net position - beginning of year as resti

Net position - end of ye

13



Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Component Un

Component Un

Governmenta Business-typ Recreatior
Activities Activities Total BOCHES Board
$ (11,769,237) $ - (11,769,237) - $ -
(3,030,825) - (3,030,825) - -
(1,891,463) - (1,891,463) - -
(816,221) - (816,221) - -
(996,968) - (996,968) - -
(1,665,402) - (1,665,402) - -
(407,196) - (407,196) - .
(4,383,960) - (4,383,960) - -
(1,355,030) - (1,355,030) - -
643,803 - 643,803 - -
(117,736) - (117,736) - -
(953,469) - (953,469) - -
(26,743,704) - (26,743,704) - -
- (199,958) (199,958) - -
- (199,958) (199,958) - -
(26,743,704) (199,958) (26,943,662) 2,006 1,000
- - - (2,493,285) -
- - - - (743,659)
- - - (2,493,285) (743,659)
31,831,342 - 31,831,342 - -
2,415,005 - 2,415,005 - -
1,275,209 - 1,275,209 - -
- - - - 1,018,465
- - - 2,542,694 -
(5,217,195) - (5,217,195) - -
30,449 131 30,580 2,006 1,000
391,044 1,271 392,315 - -
(250,000) 250,000 - - -
30,475,854 251,402 30,727,256 2,544,700 1,019,465
3,732,150 51,444 3,783,594 51,415 275,806
53,644,609 110,464 53,755,073 - 995,623
(4,029,525) - (4,029,525) 3,721,499 -
49,615,084 110,464 49,725,548 3,721,499 995,623
$ 53,347,234 % 161,908 53,509,142 3,772,914 $ 1,271,429




CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2013

Major
Genere Grantt Maintenanc
Func Func Func
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivale $ 5,307,009 $ 143,520 $ 1,605,346
Cash held by fiscal age 103,785 - -
Investment - - -
Restricted investmer - - -
Property taxes receival 521,798 - -
Accounts receivab - - -
Due from other governmet 269,048 424,576 -
Due from other fund 504,630 - -
Inventory 30,270 - -
Total asset $ 6,736,540 $ 568,096 $ 1,605,346
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payab $ 114,196 $ 19577 % 36,002
Due to other func 50,000 496,776 4,820
Accrued salaries payal 1,011,702 - -
Total liabilities 1,175,898 516,353 40,822
Deferred inflows of resourc
Deferred receivable from WSBA 269,048 - -
Property tax deferred rever 111,968 - -
Total deferred inflows of resourc 381,016 - -
Fund balance
Nonspendab
Inventory 30,270 - -
Restrictel
Major maintenance W.S. 21-15-1 - - 1,564,524
Buildings and equipment by W.S. 21-13-! - - -
Repair and maintenance W.S. 21-31-70 - - -
Donors 60,000 51,743 -
Debt servic - - -
Committec - - -
Unassigne 5,089,356 - -
Total fund balance 5,179,62! 51,74 1,564,52.
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balanc $ 6,736,540 $ 568,096 $ 1,605,346
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See accompanying notes to the financial statements



Capita Total
Constructiol Debt Servic Governmenta
Func Func Funds
$ 4,420,548 $ - $ 11,476,423

- 1,177,068 1,280,85
1,660,884 - 1,660,88.
23,681,903 - 23,681,90
- 7,106 528,90«
56,482 - 56,48:
45,582 - 739,20!
50,000 - 554,63!
- - 30,27(
$ 29,915,399 $ 1,184,174 % 40,009,555
$ 143,018 $ 36,213 $ 349,006
- - 551,59!
- - 1,011,70.
143,018 36,213 1,912,304
- - 269,04
- 1,918 113,88t
- 1,918 382,934
- - 30,27(
- - 1,564,52.
3,319,951 1,146,043 4,465,99.
838,759 - 838,75!
- - 111,74
24,949,992 - 24,949,99
663,679 - 663,67
- - 5,089,35
29,772,38 1,146,04 37,714,31
$ 29,915,399 $ 1,184,174 % 40,009,555

16



CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET GOVERNMENTAL FNDS,
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2013

Amounts reported for governmental activities in sketement of net position
are different because:

Total fund balances $ 37,714,317

Capital assets used in governmental activitiesiatdinancial
resources and, therefore, are not reported inuthesf 43,655,655

Revenues in the statement of activities that dgnmtide current
financial resources are not reported as revenuesis
Deferred property tax revenue $ 113,887
Deferred receivable from WSBAIT 269,048 382,935

Internal service funds are used by managementametthe costs of the flex
benefit plan. The assets and liabilities of thenmal service fund are
included in governmental activities in the statehwmet position 35,498

Long-term liabilities, including compensated absnare not due
and payable in the current period and thereforsmareeported

in the funds
Series 2012 bonds payable (26,025,000)
Series 2012 bonds payable premium, net of amadizat (1,558,029)
Accrued compensated absences (384,223)
Retainage payable (2,524)
Lease purchase obligations (471,395) (28,441,171)
Net position of governmental activities $ 53,347,234

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES FRUND BALANCES
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2C

Major
Genere Grant: Maintenanc
Func Func Func
Revenue
Taxe: $ 30,050,626 $ - $ -
Intergovernmental revent 1,857,229 2,463,086 1,275,208
Charges for servic 47,078 - -
Investment incorr (12,003) 381 4,034
Miscellaneou 132,543 - -
Recapture payme (5,217,195) - -
Total revenue 26,858,278 2,463,467 1,279,242
Expenditure
Instructior
Regular instructiol 11,063,292 254,310 -
Special education instructic 3,068,111 2,188,428 -
Total instructior 14,131,403 2,442,738 -
Support service
Pupil service: 2,426,007 - -
Instructional staff service 816,221 - -
General administration servic 454,379 - -
School administration servic 1,643,910 21,491 -
Business service 407,196 - -
Operation and maintenance of plant serv 3,076,944 - 816,646
Pupil transportation servici 1,355,030 - -
Central service 1,017,765 - -
Other support servic 127,735 - -
Facilities acquisition and construction serv 23,550 - -
Debt servic
Principal repaymen 268,725 - -
Interes 42,670 - -
Total support service 11,660,132 21,491 816,646
Total expenditures 25,791,535 2,464,229 816,646
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 0661743 (762) 462,596
Other financing sources (us
Transfers il - - -
Transfers (ou (1,181,578) - -
Total other financing sources (us (1,181,578) - -
Net changes in fund balan (114,835) (762) 462,591
Fund balances - beginning of y 5,294,461 52,505 1,101,928
Fund balances - end of y $ 5,179,626 $ 51,743 $ 1,564,524

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Capita Total
Constructiol Debt Servic Governmentz
Func Func Funds

$ - $ 2,413,087 $ 32,463,713

1,122,270 - 6,717,793

- - 47,078

36,999 982 30,393

- - 132,543

- - (5,217,195)
1,159,269 2,414,069 34,174,325
- - 11,317,602

- - 5,256,539

- - 16,574,141

- - 2,426,007

- - 816,221

- - 454,379

- - 1,665,401

9,270 - 416,466
1,751,532 - 5,645,122
- - 1,355,030

- - 1,017,765

- - 127,735

628,772 - 652,322

- 475,031 743,756

- 1,008,685 1,051,355
2,389,574 1,483,716 16,371,559
2,389,574 1,483,716 32,945,700
(1,230,305) 930,353 1,228,625
715,888 215,690 931,578
- - (1,181,578)
715,888 215,690 (250,000)

(514,417) 1,146,043 978,62!
30,286,798 - 36,735,692
$29,772,381 $ 1,146,043 $ 37,714,317
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERVENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Amounts reported for governmental activities in stetement of activities
are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmentaisu $ 978,625

Governmental funds report capital outlays as exjperes. However, i
the statement of activities the cost of those assetllocated over th
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciatpense. This is t
amount by which capital outlays exceed the deptieci@xpense ar
loss on disposal of assets in the current pe

Capital outla $ 3,209,289
Depreciation expen (1,532,191)
Cost basis of asset disposil (229,517)
Accumulated depreciation of asset disposil 225,501 1,673,082

Governmental funds report payments of long-ternt dskexpenditurt
and the issuance of long-term debt as rev
However, in the statement of activities, the isseganf long-term del
and the principal paid on long-term debt is rebee an increase
reduction of the long-term liabilitie

Series 2012 bonds payme 475,000
Series 2012 premium amortizat 97,887
Principal payments on long-term d 268,725 841,612

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting uisede governmental
funds, expenditures are not recognized for traiwathat are not
normally paid with expendable available financegdaurces. In the
statement of activities, however, which is presgimae the accrual basis,
expenses and liabilities are reported regardlesgseh financial resources
are available. This adjustment combines changesritpensated
absences and retainage payable.

Prior year total liability for compensated absences 290,837

Current year total liability for compensated abssnc (384,223)

Prior year retainage payable 15,323

Current year retainage payable (2,524) (80,587)

Revenues in the statement of activities that dgonotide current
financial revenues are not reported as revenuieifunds.

Deferred receivable from WSBAIT 269,048
Prior year deferred tax revenue (63,573)
Current year deferred tax revenue 113,886 319,361

The activity of the internal service fund is acotad for in a separate fund
that is considered to be a proprietary fund. Ther@st income is
reported with governmental activities. 57

Changes in net position of governmental activities $ 3,732,150

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

STATEMENT OF NET POSITIOI
PROPRIETARY FUND:

ASSETS

Current asse
Cash and cash equivale
Due from other governmel
Inventory

Total current asse

Capital asse
Property and equipment, |

Total asse!

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payab
Due to other func
Due to employees for flex bene

Total liabilities
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related

Unrestrictec

Total net positio

June 30, 201

Business-typ Government:
Activities- Activities -
Enterprise Fun Internal
Food Servic Service
Fund Func
$ 140,390 $ 37,288
7,956 -
10,878 -
159,224 37,288
6,734 -
165,958 37,288
1,016 -
3,034 -
- 1,790
4,050 1,790
6,734 -
155,17- 35,49¢
$ 161,908 $ 35,498

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSE
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITIOI
PROPRIETARY FUND:!

Year Ended June 30, 2(C

Business-typ Government:
Activities- Activities -
Enterprise Fun Internal
Food Servic Service
Fund Func
Operating revenu
Charges for servic $ 258,198 $ -
Miscellaneou 1,271 -
Total operating revenu 259,469 -
Operating expens
Salarie: 245,807 -
Employee benefi 79,665 -
Purchased servic 7,300 -
Supplies and materiz 464,864 -
Depreciatiol 5,323 -
Total operating expens 802,959 -
Loss from operation (543,490) -
Nonoperating revenu
Federal subsic 344,803 -
Interest incom 131 57
Total nonoperating revent 344,934 57
Income (loss) before transfi (198,556) 57
Transfers il 250,000 -
Change in net positi 51,444 57
Net position - beginning of ye 110,464 35,441
Net position - end of yes $ 161,908 $ 35,498

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW.
PROPRIETARY FUND:
Year Ended June 30, 2(C

Business-typ Government:
Activities- Activities -
Enterprise Fun Internal
Food Servic Service
Fund Func
Cash flows from operating activiti
Cash received from servic $ 260,977 $ -
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and sen (445,547) -
Cash paid to employees for servi (325,472) -
Cash paid for other operating expel - 1,549
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activ (510,042) 1,549
Cash flows from noncapital financing activit
Transfer 250,000 -
Advances from other fun 3,034 -
Subsidy received from federal gre 314,543 -
Net cash provided by noncapital financing actig 567,577 -
Cash flows from investing activiti
Interest incom 131 57
Net cash provided by investing activi 131 57
Net change in cash and cash equiva 57,666 1,606
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of 82,724 35,682
Cash and cash equivalents - end of $ 140,390 $ 37,288

Reconciliation of operating loss to net ¢
used in operating activiti
Operating income (los $ (543,490) $ -
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net
used in operating activiti
Commodities expense related to noncash 30,260 -
Depreciatiol 5,323
Increase (decrease) in cash resulting from chi
in operating assets and liabilit

Due from other governmet 2,779 -

Inventory (793) -

Accounts payable/due to employees for flex ber (4,121) 1,549
$ (510,042) % 1,549

Non-cash transactio
The Food Service Fund received USDA commoditiegediht $30,26

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - FIDUCIARY FURNS
June 30, 2013

Agency
Func
Private Student
Purpose Activities
Trust Funi Fund
ASSETS
Casl $ 7,763 % 220,728
Investment 242,281 -
Total asse 250,044 220,728
LIABILITIES
Scholarships payat 4,467 -
Due to student groug 760 220,728
Total liabilities 5,227 220,728
NET POSITION
Held in trust for scholarshi 244 817 -
Total net positio $ 244817 $ -

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
24



CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITIO

Additions
Scholarship donatior
Interest incom
Total addition

Deduction
Scholarship awarc

Total deduction
Change in net positic
Net position - beginning of ye

Net position - end of ye:

FIDUCIARY FUND
Year Ended June 30, 2C

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity

The Board of Trustees (Board) is the level of gowmsent which has governance responsibilities over al
activities related to public elementary and secondahool education within the jurisdiction of CarbCounty
School District #1 (District). The Board receiviaading from local, state and federal governmenirees and
must comply with the concomitant requirements esthfunding source entities. However, the Diss@&ves

as the nucleus for the reporting entity under trmvipions of GASB Statements No. 14 and 39 fobgsic
financial statements. Using this premise thesanfiial statements present the District (the primary
government) and its component units. The componeits discussed below are included in the Dissrict
reporting entity because of the significance ofrthperational or financial relationships with théstrict.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The Board of Cooperative Higher Educational Ses/iBOCHES) operating as the Carbon County Higher
Education Center is governed by a five-member bapmbinted by the District's Board of Trustees. B{ES

is legally separate from the District. The fivenm®er board is appointed by the District’'s Boardlafistees.

Of the five members four are members of the Bodrdrastees. BOCHES provides educational services,
including but not limited to postsecondary eduagtieocational-technical education and adult edooatsince
these services can be provided more effectivelpuiiin a cooperative effort with the Western Wyoming
Community College. The BOCHES may impose up to rAils on the District's assessed valuation for
operations. The BOCHES does not prepare sepaiaselgd financial statements.

The component unit column in the combined finanstatements includes the financial data of theriotst
Recreation Board. The Recreation Board is a lggaparate from the District. The nine-member guing
body of the Recreation Board is appointed by th&trigt's Board of Trustees. Only three of the mimembers
also serve on the District's Board of Trusteese Rlecreation Board provides grants to fund pulgareation
projects within the District's boundaries. The Bbaan impose a tax not to exceed one mill of thsridt's
assessed valuation for the purpose of operatingRéeeeation Board. The Recreation Board does reqtape
separately issued financial statements.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. statement of net position and the statement afigésin net
position) report information on all of the nonfidaiy activities of the primary government and itsnponent
units. For the most part, the effect of interfativity has been removed from these statementsie@mental
activities, which normally are supported by taxed atergovernmental revenues, are reported segarfabm

business-type activities, which rely to a significaxtent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the deigradnich the direct expenses of a given functinsegment
is offset by program revenues. Direct expensesharse that are clearly identifiable with a specitinction or
segment. Program revenues include 1) chargesstoroers or applicants who purchase, use, or dirbethefit
from goods, services, or privileges provided byweg function or segment and 2) grants and cortiobs that
are restricted to meeting the operational or chpguirements of a particular function or segmenaxes and
other items not properly included among prograneneres are reported instead as general revenues.
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policieg$Continued)

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Cionted)

Separate financial statements are provided forgowental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciampds, even
though the latter are excluded from the governmmgdé financial statements. Major individual govaental
funds and major individual enterprise funds arerta as separate columns in the fund financiéstants.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and FinaatBtatement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are regousing the economic resources measurement focls a
the accrual basis of accounting, as are the ptapyidund and fiduciary fund financial statemenfRevenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are reashdgeda liability is incurred, regardless of theitighof
related cash flows. Property taxes are recograseetvenues in the year for which they are leviédants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soail &bigibility requirements imposed by the provideave
been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are repantadg the current financial resources measureffioenis
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Rege are recognized as soon as they are both rabbsand
available.

Revenues are considered to be available when tleegalectible within the current period or sooroegh
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current perideor this purpose, the District considers revertoebe available
if they are collected within 60 days of the endlaf current fiscal period. Expenditures generatly recorded
when a liability is incurred, as under accrual amting. However, debt service expenditures, ad asl
expenditures related to compensated absences aints cind judgments, are recorded only when payisent
due.

Property taxes, licenses, and interest associatbdive current fiscal period are all consideretiéosusceptible
to accrual and so have been recognized as revefiubs current fiscal period. All other revenuenils are
considered to be measurable and available only wash is received by the District.

The District reports the following major governmarfunds:

The general funds the District’'s primary operating fund. It aceas for all financial resources of the District,
except those required to the accounted for in andtind.

The special revenue fun@Major Maintenance fundaccounts for the proceeds of specific revenuecssufor
major maintenance that are restricted to experaditfor specified purposes.

The capital projects fundCapital Construction fundaccounts for the proceeds of specific revenuecssufor
major capital projects that are restricted to exiteres for specified purposes. This fund also ant®for the
depreciation reserve for school building repaialeshed by the Board during the fiscal year 206&eding to
Wyoming Statute 21-13-504. Construction financétth Beries 2012 bonds and repair and maintenasegve
required by Series 2012 bonds.

The special revenue fund (Grants furaicounts for proceeds from federal, state and ddleal grant revenue
sources that are restricted to expenditures fariip@urposes.

Thedebt service fundccounts for tax levy collection and payments erieS 2012 bonds.
The District reports the following major proprietdund:

TheFood Service fundccounts for the activities of the District’s bktgest and lunch programs.
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policieg¢Continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and FinaatBtatement Presentation (Continued)
Additionally, the District reports the following i types:

Thelnternal Service Fundccounts for District’s flex benefit plan.

The Private-Purpose Trust Funid used to account for donations for scholarsuipl$ that are received by the
District that are to be awarded to current and &rstudents for post-secondary education purposes.

The Agency Fundaccounts for resources held by the District inust@dial capacity, and consists of funds that
are the property of students or others.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activitgs been eliminated from the government-wide firsnc
statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include ligebato customers or applicants for goods, servimes
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and cbuations, and 3) capital grants and contributiotrgternally
dedicated resources are reported as general reveatleer than as program revenues. Likewise, gkner
revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenuesd expenses from nonoperating items. Operatingnues
and expenses generally result from providing ses/&nd producing and delivering goods in connedtiitim a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operationsheTprincipal operating revenues of the Districtgegprise
fund are charges to students and faculty for faogtises. Operating expenses for enterprise fumclade the
cost of sales and services, administrative experesgd depreciation on capital assets. All reverams
expenses not meeting this definition are reportedamoperating revenues and expenses.

Effective this reporting period is GASB Statemenmt. 2, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASBAGPA Pronouncemen(&ASB 62). This statement
brings the authoritative accounting and finanoigdarting literature for state and local governmeatgther in

a single source, with the FASB and AICPA guidancedified as necessary to appropriately recognize the
governmental environment and the needs of govertahfimancial statement users. GASB No. 62 widlui¢in

a more consistent application of applicable guidaimcfinancial statements of state and local gavemts.
This statement also supersedes GASB Statement\éc2ounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary
Funds and other Governmental Entities That Use Retgry Fund Accountingthereby eliminating the election
provided in that Statement for enterprise funds bsiness-type activities to apply post-November 13B9
FASB Statements and Interpretations that do noflicomith of contradict GASB pronouncements. Hoge
those entities can continue apply, as other ac@mntiterature, post-November 30, 1989 FASB
pronouncements that do not conflict with or conte@ASB pronouncements, including this Statement.
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policieg¢Continued)

Implementation of Governmental Accounting StandarBeard (GASB) Statements No. 63 and 65

During the year ended June 30, 2013, the Distmigiemented three new accounting standards. GASBNo
The Financial Entity, Omnibus an amendment of GAgBements No. 14 and No,, 8dsulted in a prior period
adjustment for a change in financial reporting. e $ote 16 for more details. GASB Statement No. 63,
Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resas,cDeferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position
resulting in a change to the District’s financiaporting. GASB No. 63tems Previously Reported as Assets
and Liabilities resulted in a prior period adjustment for a cleaimyaccounting policies. See Note 16 for more
details. Those changes are reflected in this firmhneport.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity

Deposits and Investments and Restricted Investments

The District's cash and cash equivalents are ceraidio be cash on hand, demand deposits, andtehart
investments with original maturities of three manthn less from the date of acquisition.

State statutes authorize the District to investdourities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Trgasuagencies

of the United States government, bank certificatedeposit, shares or savings certificates of ggvand loan
associations, Tennessee Valley Authority bonds motks and export-import bank notes and guaranteed
participations. The District's investments areargd at fair value. Fair value is determined gshe latest bid
price or by the closing exchange price at the states of net position date. The District’s investiseconsist

of participation in the Wyoming Government Investiné&und (WGIF) investment pool and certificates of
deposit. WGIF was established on or after July2B6 according to the Wyoming Statutory Trust AShares

of the fund are offered exclusively to Wyoming Goweental entities. Separate accounts are maimutdore
each entity. These pools invest in obligationghaf U.S. Treasury and other investments as autubtigy
Wyoming Statutes.

The District’s restricted investments representpenls from bonds held in escrow.

Accounts Receivable

The District considers all accounts receivableaduily collectible at June 30, 2013 and, therefooeallowance
for doubtful accounts is deemed necessary. Effechuly 1, 2013, the District withdrew from WSBAIpublic
risk insurance pool, resulting in a receivable 403572 representing the District’s prorata shar/SBAIT's
net position at July 1, 2012. This amount is nemlgle in three equal installments. The Distriatefeed
$134,524 in 2013 and the remaining amount of $2i® included in due from other governments.

Interfund Balances

On the fund financial statements, receivables aaghlples resulting from short-term interfund loame a
classified as “Due from other funds/Due to otherdsl. These amounts are eliminated in the goventethand
business-type activities columns of the statemémtctivities columns of the statement of net positiexcept
for the net residual amounts due between goverrahant business-type activities.
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policieg¢Continued)
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity (Cimued)

Property Taxes

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien opepripas of May 11. Taxes are levied on or abaufust 1
and payable in two installments on September 1Math 1. The County bills and collects its own gedy
taxes and also taxes for all municipalities andtipal subdivisions within the County, including Ban County
School District #1. District property tax revenwse recognized when levied to the extent that theult in
current receivables, which means when collectetiimihe current period or expected to be collegtidin 60
days of the fiscal year end to be used to payliiesi of the current period.

The District is required by Wyoming Statutes toyidaxes of twenty-five mills of assessed valuationall

school purposes, exclusive of bond interest andmgdion. In addition, a county-wide school propéeax of
six mills is levied, BOCHES district tax for thredlls and a recreation district tax for one millhe combined
tax related to finance general school servicesrdtian the payment of principal and interest orgerm debt
for the year ended June 30, 2013 was thirty-fivissmi

Inventories

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (first-first-out) or market. Governmental fund type intaries are
recorded using the purchase method whereby thereaoeded as expenditures when purchased withifutice
level financial statements. On the other handctirssumption method is used for reporting thesentorées at
the government-wide level.

Enterprise fund inventories are accounted for usiegconsumption method by which inventory acqiaisg are
recorded in inventory accounts when purchased agived by other means and are charged to expense wh
consumed or sold. Inventory in the Food Servicedfiwonsists of food products including USDA food
commodities held for consumption.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, egdipment, are reported in the applicable govertaher

business-type activities columns in the governmde financial statements. Capital assets aredéfby the
District as assets with an initial, individual cagtmore than $5,000 and an estimated useful fifexcess of
two years. Such assets are recorded at histaristlor estimated historical cost if purchasedarstructed.
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimataddaket value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs thabtadd to the value of the asset or materialtgreck asset
lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvemergscapitalized as projects are constructed. Iaténeurred
during the construction phase of capital assetsusiness-type activities is included as part ofdhpitalized
value of the assets constructed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policieg¢Continued)
Assets, Liabilities, and Net position or Equity (Gtinued)

Capital Assets (Continued)

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary gowent are depreciated using the straight line naetheer
the following estimated useful lives.

Assets Years
Buildings 50
Building improvements 20
Vehicles 8-12
Furniture, machinery, equipment, and software 3-25

Compensated Absences

The District's full-time certified staff earns teays of sick leave per year and two days of peftdease with
unlimited accumulation. Unused personal leaveosverted to sick leave. The District's certifigdffsis
compensated for their accumulated sick leave wgp nmaximum one hundred days based on a graduatkd sca
depending on their length of service. The numbietays accumulated, up to the maximum, is paidchatate

of $8.50 for each accumulated eligible hour attiitme the employee leaves the District.

The District's support personnel earn sick leaws dsach month with unlimited accumulation basedimn
number of hours worked. Support personnel who teweinimum of ten years of continuous service ® th
District are compensated for their accumulationtag maximum of ninety days at the daily rate é-talf the
entry level rate on the salary schedule for eabtciass.

All full-time support personnel are entitled to ation leave after completing one year of employnveiit the
District. Vacation leave is earned on a graduatade depending on the length of service. Vacd#iave must
be taken within the year after it is earned and n@yaccumulate.

Fund Balance

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund heda Fund balance is further classified as nordadaae,
restricted, committed, assigned, or unassignechspiendable fund balance cannot be spent becaitseaim.
Restricted fund balance has limitations imposedregitors, grantors, or contributors or by enablegjslation
or constitutional provisions. Committed fund balanis a limitation imposed by the District's Boaodl
Trustees, the highest level of authority, throughraval of resolutions. Assigned fund balances lignitation
imposed by a designee of the District board. Ugassl fund balance in the General fund is the esburces in
excess of what can be properly classified in oni@fabove four categories. Negative unassigned halance
in other governmental funds represents excess ditpegs incurred over the amounts restricted, cdiedi or
assigned to those purposes. Proprietary fundyeguiiassified the same as in the government-wideements.

31
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policieg$Continued)

Assets, Liabilities, and Net position or Equity (Gtinued)

When both restricted and unrestricted fund balarmgesavailable for use, it is the District's polity use
restricted fund balance first, then unrestrictenbfbalance. Furthermore, committed fund balanoesesluced
first, followed by assigned amounts, and then tigassl amounts when expenditures are incurred fgqses
for which amounts in any of those unrestricted foathnce classifications can be used.

Restricted Net position

For the government-wide financial statements, ositipn is reported as restricted when constrgitased on
net position are either: (1) Externally imposeddogditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, ibotars, or
laws or regulations of other governments or (2)dsgal by law through constitutional provisions oalgimg
legislation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftyrmith generally accepted accounting principleguiees

management to make estimates and assumptionsftbet the reported amounts of assets and lialslitiad

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiethatdate of the financial statements and the regatounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting peActlal results could differ from those estimates.

Note 2. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The District follows these procedures in estabtighithe budgetary data reflected in the financeteshents:

Prior to May 15, the Superintendent submits toBbard of Trustees a proposed operating budgetofiscal
year commencing the following July 1. The opeatiidget includes proposed expenditures and thesrafa
financing them. A public hearing is conducted thy third Wednesday in July to obtain public comraent

The budget is adopted by the third Thursday of.July

At the request of the Superintendent or upon ita awtion after publication of notice, the BoardTofistees
may by resolution transfer any unencumbered or pereded appropriation balance or part thereof from o
fund, department or account to another. All appatipns, excluding appropriations for capital s, lapse
at the close of the budget year to the extent #reynot expended or encumbered. The level of ekpeea
control for budget purposes is the department level

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a mamagt control device during the year for the Gdrieuad,
Special Revenue Funds, and Capital Projects Funds.

Budgets for the General Special Revenue and Capitgécts Funds are adopted on a cash basis (NONFPEA
Such basis is not consistent with generally acceateounting principles (GAAP).

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase qrdensracts, and other commitments for the exparaelivf
monies are recorded in order to reserve that podidhe applicable appropriation, is employed m&@ension
of formal budgetary integration during the yeanc&mbrances outstanding at year end are immaterial.

The District amended its 2012-13 budget to decr&@sa@eneral fund’'s general support function by(dd00
and increased building and acquisition functionsl @ayment to BOCHES by $250,000, and $500,000
functions, respectively. In addition, the Distrintreased the Depreciation fund’s facilities asgign and
construction services by $550,000, and Food Sefuing by $100,000.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 3. Detailed Notes on All Funds

Deposits and Investments
As of June 30, 2013, the District had the followingestments:

Investment Typ Fair Value 1 year or les 1to 5 year Rate Rating

Certificates of Depos $ 1660884 $ 1,660,884 $ - 0.15% N/A
$ 1660884 $ 1,660,884 $ -

District restricted
Wyoming Government
.000%to A-1to
Investment Fund Pool $ 23,681,903 $ 14,978,820 $ 8,703,083 4.625%  AAAmM
(WGIF) $ 23,681,903 $ 14,978,820 $ 8,703,083

Private Purpose Trust Fu
Certificate of Depos $ 242281 $ 242281 $ 242,281 0.25% N/A

Interest rate risk Interest rate risk is the risk that changesiariest rates will adversely affect the fair vatfie
an investment. The District's investments are hrelah external pooled investment account, andragans of
limiting its exposure to fair value losses arisiingm rising interest rates, the District attempisntatch its
investment maturities to expected cash flow needath this investment focus, investments are exqubdd
reach maturity with limited gains or losses.

Credit risk Generally, credit risk is the risk that an igsakan investment will not fulfill its obligatioto the
holder of the investment. This is measured byatb&ignment of a rating by a nationally recognizatissical
rating organization. Under investment agreemerita WGIF, the District has invested monies at adix
contract rate of interest. Because the securigssentially a written contract, there is no ratavgilable for
such an investment; however, under Wyoming statutederlying providers are required to have thehédg
rating from at least one of the nationally recogdizating organizations. The WGIF fund has AAArting
WGIF issues audited financial statements whichlmnobtained through Wyoming School Board Assoaiaio
2323 Pioneer Avenue, Cheyenne, Wyoming 82001.

Concentration of credit risk. The District does not have a formal policy thiédvas for or limits investment in
any one issuer that is in excess of a specifiedepg¢age of the District's total investments. AteJ30, 2013,
93% of the District’s investments were with WGIFdaf?6 in Certificates of Deposit.

Custodial credit risk - depositsin the case of deposits, this is the risk thathie event of a bank failure, the
District's deposits may not be returned to it. t&Statutes require that the District's depositexioess of the
Federal depository insurance amount be collate@lizAt June 30, 2013, the District's deposits wealtky
collateralized with securities held by the pledginstitution’s trust department or agent, in jotnistody of the
bank and the District.

Custodial credit risk - investmentsFor an investment, this is the risk that, in gvent of the failure of the
counterparty, the District will not be able to reeothe value of its investments or collateral sities that are
in the possession of an outside party. Statetstatumit the type of investments the District agse. Statutes
limit investments primarily to securities issuedguaranteed by the U.S. Treasury or agencies oUthted
States government, therefore, reducing the Distrestposure to custodial credit risk for its invesihts. The
only other significant exposure is for securitietdhby securities brokers or other banks.
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Note 3.

Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets follows:

Governmental activities

Capital assets, n
being depreciate
Lanc
Construction i
progres
Total capita
assets, not beil
depreciate

Capital assets, bei
depreciate
Buildings ani
improvement
Vehicles
Furniture an
equipmer

Total capital
assets beir
depreciate

Less accumulatt
depreciatio
Buildings an
improvement
Vehicles
Furniture an
equipmer

Total
accumulate
depreciatio
Total capite
assets, beir
depreciate(
net

Governmental activitie
capital, ne

Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)

Primary Governmel

Prior Balance s

Balanct perioc restate Balanct
June 30, 201  adjustmer  June 30, 201 Additions Retirement June 30, 201
$ 934579 % - $ 934579 % - $ - $ 934,579
400,390 - 400,390 2,683,734 1,375,480 1,708,644
1,334,969 - 1,334,969 2,683,734 1,375,480 2,643,223
57,248,993 186,604 57,062,389 1,596,796 - 58,659,185
3,668,476 84,287 3,584,189 41,599 217,885 3,407,903
1,013,218 361,472 651,746 262,640 11,632 902,754
61,930,687 632,363 61,298,324 1,901,035 229,517 62,969,842
17,713,871 80,654 17,633,217 1,205,882 - 18,839,099
2,740,169 67,303 2,672,866 227,655 217,885 2,682,636
662,684 318,047 344,637 98,654 7,616 435,675
21,116,724 466,004 20,650,720 1,532,191 225,501 21,957,410
40,813,963 166,359 40,647,604 368,844 4,016 41,012,432
$42,148,932 $166,359 $41,982,573 $3,052,578 $1,379,496 $ 43,655,655

The District has $1,413,128 assets under capitdele with accumulated amortization of $779,438.e Th
amortization expense for the fiscal year ended 30n2013 was $181,375.
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Note 3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)

Capital Assets (Continued)

Business-type activiti
Capital assets, being depreci:

Buildings and improvemer $ 173,675 $ - $ - $ 173,675
Equipment 200,347 - - 200,347
Total capital assets being
depreciate 374,022 - - 374,022
Less accumulated depreciati
Buildings 166,732 3,473 - 170,205
Equipment 195,233 1,850 - 197,083
Total accumulated depreciati 361,965 5,323 - 367,288

Business-type activitit
capital assets, r $ 12,057 $ (5323) $ - $ 6,734

A summary of changes in BOCHES capital assetsvistio

Balance Balance
July 1, 2012 Additions Deletions June 30, 2013

Capital assets, not being depreci

Lanc $ - $ 165,168 $ - $ 165,168
Total capital assets not beir
depreciate - 165,168 - 165,168
Capital assets, being depreci:
Buildings and improvemer 186,604 - 18,349 168,255
Vehicles 84,287 50,189 - 134,476
Furniture and equipme 361,472 - 10,553 350,919
Total capital assets being
depreciated 632,363 50,189 28,902 653,650
Less accumulated depreciat
Buildings and improvemer 80,654 8,176 9,030 79,800
Vehicles 67,303 12,159 - 79,462
Furniture and equipme 318,047 19,432 10,551 326,928
Total accumulated depreciation 466,004 39,767 19,581 486,190
Total capital assets, beil
depreciated, n 166,359 10,422 9,321 167,460
Total capital asse $ 166,359 $ 175590 $ 9,321 $ 332,628
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Note 3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)

Capital Assets (Continued)
Depreciation expenses were charged to functionfprog of the District as follows:

Governmental activitie

Regular instructio $ 222,855
Pupil transportatic 127,607
Operation and maintenance of plant serv 1,181,729

Total depreciation expenses - governmental aca $ 1,532,191

Business-type activiti

Food service funi $ 5,323
Total depreciation expenses - business-type det $ 5,323
Long-term Debt
Long-term liability activity for the year ended &80, 2013, was as follows:
Beginning
Balanct Ending Due Within
As Restate Additions Reduction Balance One Yeal
Lease purchas
obligation: $ 740,120 $ - $ 268,725 % 471,395 $ 240,762
Series 2012 bon 26,500,000 - 475,000 26,025,000 970,000
Premium ol
Series 2012 bon 1,655,916 - 97,887 1,558,029 97,887
Retainage payak 15,323 2,524 15,323 2,524 2,524
Accruec
compensate
absence 290,837 384,223 290,837 384,223 102,247

$ 29,202,196 $ 386,747 $ 1,147,772 $ 28,441,171 $ 1,413,420

For the governmental activities, debt is generailyidated by the general fund, and debt relate8does 2012
bonds will be liquidated by the debt service fund.

36



CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)

Long-term Debt (Continued)
BOCHES, long-term liability activity for the yeanded June 30, 2013 was as follows:

Beginning
Balanct Ending Due Within
As Restate Additions Reduction Balance One Yeal
Lease purchas
obligation: $ 27,027  $ - $ 7,245  $ 19,782 % 7,245
Accruec
compensate
absence 33,513 - 1,719 31,794 -
$ 60,540 $ - $ 8,964 % 51576 $ 7,245

As of June 30, 2013 the District had the followmgstanding capital lease obligations:

Lease/purchase obligation on copier equipmentrestaate of 4.6%, due
quarterly installments of $18,064 including interésough December 201
collateralized with copier $ 35511

Lease/purchase obligation on copier equipmentrestaate of 4.6%, due
guarterly installments of $3,362 including interégsbugh December 201
collateralized with copier 43,247

Lease/purchase obligations for four buses; inteegstof 4.10%, due
annualy installments of $104,478 including intetesbugh May 201:
collateralized with buse 99,288

Lease/purchase obligations for four buses; inteegstof 4.10%, due
annual installments of $106,384 including intetbsbugh May 201¢

collateralized with buse 293,349
471,395

Less current 240,762
Long term det $ 230,633

The future minimum lease obligations and the nes@nt value of these minimum lease payments amef 30,
2013, are as follows:

Total Principa

Year Ending June 3 and Interes
201¢ $ 260,440
201¢ 119,833
201¢€ 119,833
2017 6,724
Total minimum lease payme 506,830
Less: amount representing inte 35,435
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 471,395
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Note 3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)

Long-term Debt (Continued)
Bonds

In May 2012, the District issued Series 2012 bdiedthe purpose of funding construction projecBincipal
payments are due June"&nd interest payments are due Jur®arkl December 15

The debt service requirement on the Series 201d<as of June 30, 2013 is as follows:

Year Endini Interes Series 201 Total Principa
June 3( Rate Principal Interest and Interes
201¢ 0.50% $ 970,000 $ 931,198 $ 1,901,198
201¢ 3.00% 1,310,000 902,098 2,212,098
201¢€ 1.00% 1,325,000 888,998 2,213,998
2017 1.25% 1,340,000 872,436 2,212,436
201¢ 4.00% 1,395,000 818,836 2,213,836
2018 to 202 4% to 5% 7,910,000 3,162,480 11,072,680
2023 to 202 3.1% to 4.59 9,635,000 1,434,189 11,068,350
2028 to 202 4.5% to 3.375¢ 2,140,000 72,226 4,426,701

$ 26,025,000 $ 9,082,461 $ 37,321,297

Premium amortization on the Series 2013 bondshsdided as follows:

Series 2012

Year Ending Premium
June 30 amortization
2014 $ 97,887
2015 97,887
2016 97,887
2017 97,887
2018 97,887
2019 to 2023 489,435
2024 to 2028 489,435
2028 to 2029 89,724
$ 1,558,029

Operating Leases

The District leases certain portable classroomdingls, other office classroom space, and equipmnatér non-
cancelable operating leases. For the year ended 30, 2013, total rental expense was approximately
$129,000.
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Note 3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)

Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers

The composition of the interfund balances as o€ Rf 2013 is as follows:

Interfund Interfund
Receivable Payable
Primary government
General Fund $ 504,630 $ 50,000
Major Maintenance Fund - 4,820
Capital Construction Fund 50,000 -

Grants Fund - 496,776
Food Service Fund - 3,034
$ 554,630 $ 554,630

The outstanding balance between funds result mé&ioiy the time lag between the dates (1) interfgndds
and services are provided or reimbursable expemditaccur, (2) transactions are recorded in thewsding
system, and (3) payments between funds are made.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 theibistad the following interfund transfers:

Transfers il Transfers ot
General Fund $ - $ 1,181,578
Capital Construction Fund 715,888 -
Debt Service Fund 215,690 -
Food Service Fund 250,000 -

$ 1,181,578 $ 1,181,578

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the thiat statute or budget requires to collect thethe fund
that statute or budget requires to expend themm@e receipts restricted to debt service from ftheds
collecting the receipts to the debt service fundielst service payments become due, and (3) usstriared
revenues collected in the general fund to finaram@us programs accounted for in other funds irostance
with budgetary authorizations.

Retirement Plan

The District contributes to the Wyoming Retirem@&ystem ("System"), a statewide cost-sharing meHipl
employer public employee retirement system (PER®)e System provides retirement, disability andtllea
benefits according to predetermined formulas. Benare established by Title 9, Chapter 3 of thgowling

Statutes. The System issued a publicly availabbntial report that includes audited financiatestaents and
required supplementary information for the Systefihe report may be obtained by writing to the Wyogni
Retirement System, Fifth Floor West, 6101 Yellowmst®Road, Cheyenne, Wyoming 82002.
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Retirement Plan (Continued)

Plan members are required to contribute 7.00% eif thnnual covered salary and the District is nemliito
contribute 7.12% of the annual covered payrollgitktion enacted in 1979 allows the employer tp qay or

all of the employees’ contribution in addition teetmatching contribution. The District and BOCH&8rently
pay 100% of the required employee contribution.nt@bution rates are established by Title 9, Chaptef the
Wyoming Statutes. The District’s contributionstbe System, excluding BOCHES, for the years endinge

30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were approximately$2,12],92,133,908 and $2,092,687, respectively, which
equaled 100% of the required contributions for egehr. Effective September 1, 2013, the employee
contribution will increase by 0.50% from 7.00% t&(%. In September 2014, the employer contributada

will increase by 0.50% from 7.12% to 7.62%. The @guwvill have the option to pay or not pay the diddial
employee contribution.

Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of losktel to torts, theft of, damage to and destructibassets,
errors and omissions, injuries to employees andrahtlisasters. During the year ended June 303 204
District contracted with various insurance compsari property insurance (including boiler and maety),

general liability insurance, professional insuraaoel vehicle insurance. The coverage’s under egish of
insurance policy vary in amounts and deductibl&se District has not had significant settlementseexling
insurance coverage in any of the past three figeals.

The District pays into the State Worker's Compengsabystem a premium based on a rate per covergdlpa
This rate is calculated based on accident histodyaministrative cost. For the year ended Jun@@03, the
District paid approximately $158,470 into the Staterker's Compensation System.

Effective July 1, 2012, the District withdrew froMVyoming School Boards Association Insurance Trust
(WSBAIT), a public entity risk pool currently opdireg as a health and welfare risk management asutamce
program for several school districts in Wyomingd goined Wyoming Educator Benefit Trust (WEBT). €Th
District paid approximately $226,000 in claims ot to WSBAIT during 2013 and approximately $1, 966

in premiums to WEBT. According to the District'graement with WEBT, if the District terminates thei
participation with WEBT after the first renewal\Jd, 2013, but prior to the second renewal, Jyl2d14, the
District is responsible for any claims incurred oprito the date of termination, but processed affer
termination date. After the second renewal withBVEEthe District is required to give WEBT a 45 daystice

of its termination and the eligible claims subndtteithin six months following the termination datél be paid

by WEBT.

Transactions with discretely presented componenitsin

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, th&ibiseceived $110,000 from the Recreation Boardgerate
the swimming pool. The District received $21,000ental fees from BOCHES.

40



CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 3. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)

Commitments and Contingencies
As of June 30, 2013, the District had the followmgstanding contract commitments:

Contract Completed Outstanding

Amount Amount Amount
CC higher ed $ 499,916 $ 390,903 % 109,013
Rawlins High School 2,901,935 814,021 2,087,914
Rawlins Middle School 323,992 173,977 150,015
Rawlins Elementary School 264,931 10,835 254,096
Rawlins High School Aquatics Center 557,724 152,571 405,153
Sinclair renovation 144,070 72,097 71,973
Major maintenance - 80,231 68,999 11,232
Major maintenance - Little Snake River Valley 224,88 8,100 216,781
Major maintenance - Rawlins Elementary 189,119 17,141 171,978

$ 5,186,799 $ 1,708,644 $ 3,478,155

The projects listed above will be financed by reimdgments from the Wyoming School Facilities Disisand
the 2012 Series bonds, as well as major mainteratomations from the Wyoming School Foundation.

The District has a discrimination complaint filedthe U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commissidkt.
the date the financial statements were issuedcthim was still being investigated. Although tétcome of
these matters is currently not determinable, ttienate cost to resolve these matters is not exgectdave a
material effect on the financial statements.

During 2013, a dispute developed between the Distgeneral contractor and their sub-contractor ther
demolition of Mt. View and Pershing Elementary solso The dispute may have to be resolved through
litigation. At this time management does not knibthiere will be any financial impact to the Distri

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events were evaluated through the fate oeport December 12, 2013. The date, at wihieh
financial statements were available to be issuedetent requiring recording or disclosure in theamcial
statements year ended June 30, 2013.

Accounting Standards Issued, But Not Implemented

As of June 30, 2013, the Governmental Accountiram@irds Board has issued the following standardshwh
the Carbon County School District No. 1 may impleiria its next fiscal year.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statememt &8, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions—an amendment of GASB Statement Nwa&7issued to improve accounting and financipbréng

by state and local governments for pensions. db amproves information provided by state and local
governmental employers about financial supportfemsions that is provided by other entities. TStatement
results from a comprehensive review of the effertass of existing standards of accounting and ¢iahn
reporting for pensions with regard to providing idem-useful information, supporting assessments of
accountability and interperiod equity, and creatidglitional transparency. Management has not adedl its
assessment of the effect of implementing this guida
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Prior Period Adjustment

During the year ended June 30, 2013, the Distdopted Governmental Accounting Standards Boara: Bt
No. 61,The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus an amendnoéiGASB Statements No. 14 and Nq.v@dich
was issued to improve financial reporting for a gownental financial reporting entity. The requisgns of
Statement No. 14The Financial Reporting Entityand the related financial reporting requiremexfitStatement
No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’'s Bionm and Analysis — for State and Local
Governmentswere amended to better meet user needs an tessddeporting entity issues that have arisen
since the issuance of those Statements. This nstate modified certain requirements for inclusion of
component units in the financial reporting entitythis Statement also amended the criteria for teypr
component units as if they were a part of the pningvernment (that is blending) in certain circtamges.
Implementation of this Statement resulted in prestemn of BOCHES, as a discretely presented comptoumait
rather than a blended component unit is refleatatie table shown below. In the year ended Jun@GIB, the
District adopted the provisions contained in thev@omental Accounting Standards Board Statement6Np.
Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabiliti#hese provisions changed the accepted accouftding
costs of issuance amount other items. Costs o&iig® associated with a bond offering were deferrate
past and amortized over the life of the bonds. mée provisions required the costs to be expendsshw
incurred. In the year of implementation, all fica information presented is to be restated tondae required
presentation. Implementing GASB Statement No. 6#l &lo. 65 resulted in the following changes to
information previously reported:

Governmental

Governmental Prior period Prior period Activities

Activities adjustment adjustment as restated

6/30/2012 GASB No. 61 GASB No. 65 6/30/2012

Total assets $ 84,767,486 $ (3,869,084) $ (308,026) $ 80,590,376
Total liabilities 31,122,877 (147,585) - 30,975,292

Total net position $ 53,644,609 $ (3,721,499) $ (308,026) $ 49,615,084
Total revenues $ 34,259,982 $ 2943924 $ - $ 37,203,906
Less total program expenses (33,790,844) (2,934,382) - (36,725,226)
Less transfers (150,000) - - (150,000)
Change in net position 319,138 9,542 - 328,680

Net position, beginning 53,325,471 (3,731,041) (308,026) 49,286,404

Net position, ending $ 53,644,609 $ (3,721,499) $ (308,026) $ 49,615,084
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES INURD BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS

GENERAL FUND
Year Ended June 30, 2(C

Revenue
Local source
County source
State source
Other source
Total revenue

Expense

Instructior

Instructional suppo

Support services - general sup

Facilities acquisition ar

constructiol

Payment to other government u

Total expenditure

Excess (deficiency)
revenues over expenditu

Other financing ust
Transfers ot

Change in fund balan

Fund balance - beginning of year

Fund balance - end of year

Variance witt
Final Budge
Budgeted Amoun Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative
$ 21,357,952 $ 21,357,952 $ 22,401,532 1,043,580
5,514,728 5,514,728 6,102,024 587,296
19,000 19,000 32,691 13,691
500,000 500,000 9,435 (490,565)
27,391,680 27,391,680 28,545,682 1,154,002
16,507,768 16,507,768 15,319,290 1,188,478
2,706,875 2,706,875 2,136,043 570,832
9,749,229 9,349,229 8,691,102 658,127
550,000 65,000 38,377 26,623
1,477,251 1,512,251 1,511,777 474
30,991,123 30,141,123 27,696,589 2,444,534
(3,599,443) (2,749,443) 849,093 3,598,536
(1,020,000) (1,020,000) (965,690) 54,310
(1,020,000) (1,020,000) (965,690) 54,310
(4,619,443) (3,769,443) (116,597) 3,652,846
4,959,780 4,959,780 4,959,780
$ 340,337 $ 1,190,337 $ 4,843,183

See accompanying note to the required supplemeint@rynation
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES INUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)
MAJOR MAINTENANCE FUND

Revenues
Intergovernmental
Interest

Total revenues

Expenditures
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency)
revenues over expenditures

Fund balance - beginning of year

Fund balance - end of year

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 1,275,209 $ 1,275,209 $ 1,275,208 $ Q)
20,000 20,000 4,034 (15,966)
1,295,209 1,295,209 1,279,242 (15,967)
2,440,699 2,440,699 824,206 1,616,493
2,440,699 2,440,699 824,206 1,616,493
(1,145,490) (1,145,490) 455,036 $ 1,600,526
1,145,491 1,145,491 1,145,491
$ 19 1 $ 1,600,527

See accompanying note to the required supplemeint@rynation
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES INURD BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS

Revenue
Federal sources
State sources
Local sources

Investment earnings
Total revenue

Expenditure
General instructic
Instructional suppo
General suppc
Total expenditure

Deficiency of
revenues over expenditu
Other financing sourc
Transfers i
Total other financing sourc
Net change in fund balanc
Fund deficit - beginning of ye

Fund deficit - end of ye

GRANTS FUNL
Year Ended June 30, 2(C

Variance witl
Final Budge
Budgeted Amoun Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative
$ 3,980,476 $ 3,980,476 $ 2,171,268 $ (1,809,208)
700,000 700,000 285,315 (414,685)
120,000 120,000 - (120,000)
- - 381 381
4,800,476 4,800,476 2,456,964 (2,343,512)
4,350,000 4,350,000 2,441,314 1,908,686
200,000 200,000 - 200,000
450,000 450,000 20,786 429,214
5,000,000 5,000,000 2,462,100 2,537,900
(199,524) (199,524) (5,136) 194,388
25,000 - - -
25,000 - - -
(174,524) (199,524) (5,136) $ 194,388
(348,117) (348,117) (348,117)
$ (522,641) $ (547,641) $ (353,253)

See accompanying note to the required supplemeint@rynation
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

JUNE 30, 2013

1. Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Bis and GAAP Basis

Revenue
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) ft
the Budgetary Comparison Schec

Differences - Budget Basis to GA,
Accrual of property taxes receivat
Intergovernmental reven
Investment earnin
IBNR claims income
Taxes recorded in BOCHI

Total revenues as reported on
Statement of Revenues, Expenditt
and Changes in Fund Balanc
Governmental Fun

Expenditure
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) ft
the Budgetary Comparison Sched

Differences - Budget Basis to GA,
Accrual of accounts payab
IBNR claims expen:

Taxes recorded in BOCHI

Total expenditures as reported on
Statement of Revenues, Expenditt
and Changes in Fund Balanc
Governmental Fun

Major
General Maintenanc Grantt
Fund Func Func
$ 28,545,682 $ 1,279,242 $ 2,456,964
181,123 - -
(223) - 6,503
(20,299) - -
(336,228) - -
(1,511,777) - -
$ 26,858,278 $ 1,279,242 $ 2,463,467
$ 27,696,589 $ 824,206 $ 2,462,100
(42,831) (7,560) 2,129
(350,446) - -
(1,511,777) - -
$ 25,791,535 $ 816,646 $ 2,464,229
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES INURD BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)
CAPITAL CONSTRUCTION FUND - CAPITAL PROJECTS
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Intergovernmental $ 24,000,000 $ 24,000,000 $ 1,076,688 $ (22,923,312
Total revenues 24,000,000 24,000,000 1,076,688 (22,923,312)
Expenditures
Capital outlay 26,947,368 26,947,368 599,102 26,348,266
Total expenditures 26,947,368 26,947,368 599,102 26,348,266
Excess (deficiency) «
revenues over expenditures (2,947,368) (2,947,368) 477586 $ 3,424,954

Fund balance - beginning of year 198,224 198,224 198,224

Fund balance (deficit) - end
of year $ (2,749,144) $ (2,749,144) $ 675,810

Note to the budgetary presentation

The Capital Projects fund is combined with the @dpgfonstruction fund on the Balance Sheet anceSiznt
of Revenues and Expenditures - Governmental Funds.
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES INUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)
CAPITAL CONSTRUCTION FUND - DEPRECIATION RESERVE
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Interest $ 5000 $ 5000 $ 4296 $ (704)
Total revenues 5,000 5,000 4,296 (704)
Expenditures
Capital outlay - - - -
Total expenditures - - - -
Excess ¢
revenues over expenditu 5,000 5,000 4,296 (704)
Other financing sourc
Transfers i 500,000 550,000 500,000 (50,000)
Total other financing sourc 500,000 550,000 500,000 (50,000)
Change in fund balance 505,000 555,000 504,296 $ (50,704)
Fund balance - beginning of year 2,765,654 2,765,654 2,765,654

Fund balance - end of year $ 3,270,654% 3,320,654 $ 3,269,950

Note to the budgetary presentation

The Depreciation Reserve fund is combined with @apital Construction fund on the Balance Sheet and
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Govermiriemnds.
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES INURD BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)
CAPITAL CONSTRUCTION FUND - BOND CONSTRUCTION
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Other sources - investment
income $ - $ - $ (17,561) $ (17,561)
Total revenues - - (17,561) (17,561)
Expenditures
Capital outlay 26,944,854 26,944,854 1,882,172 25,062,682
Purchases services - - 17,991 (17,991)
Total expenditures 26,944,854 26,944,854 1,900,163 25,044,691
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (26,944,854) (26,944,854) (2,917,724) $ 25,027,130

Fund balance - beginning of year 26,896,541 26,896,541 26,896,541

Fund balance (deficit) - end
of year $ (48,313) $ (48,313) $ 24,978,817

Note to the budgetary presentation
The Bond Construction fund is combined with the i@hpConstruction fund on the Balance Sheet and
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Govermairiémbds.
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES INURD BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)
CAPITAL CONSTRUCTION FUND - REPAIR AND MAINTENANCEBOND RESERVE
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Other sources - investment
income $ 5000 $ - $ (6,218) $ (6,218)
Total revenues 5,000 - (6,218) (6,218)
Expenditures
Capital outlay - - - -
Total expenditures - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures 5,000 - (6,218) $ (6,218)
Fund balance - beginning of year 844,977 844,977 844,977
Fund balance - end of year $ 849,977 $ 844,977 $ 838,759

Note to the budgetary presentation

The Repair and Maintenance Bond Reserve fund idowd with the Capital Construction fund on thedBale
Sheet and Statement of Revenues and Expendit@egernmental Funds.
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STATISTICAL INFORMATION
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

NET POSITION BY COMPONEN
LAST 10 YEARS

(Unaudited
Governmental Activities 2013 2012 2011 2010
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt $ 41,264,012 % 41,366,461 $ 40,984,314 $ 29,390,149
Restricted 6,981,020 4,651,094 7,347,945 3,472,334
Unrestricted 5,102,202 4,627,054 4,993,212 8,276,318
Total primary government
net position $ 53,347,234 $ 50,644,609 $ 53,325,471 $ 41,138,801
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

2004

$ 16,534,830 $ 14,430,317 $ 10,809,932 $ 10,331,931 $ 10,115,675

9,065,827 8,308,713 5,578,125 5,507,157 5,289,020

$ 10,176,185

5,563,197

$ 25,600,657 $ 22,739,030 $ 16,388,057 $ 15,839,088 $ 15,404,695

$ 15,739,382

55



Expenses
Instructional programs

Support services
Pupil transportation
Other support services
BOCHES
INBR claims expense
Nutrition services
Interest on long-term debt

Total expenses

Program revenue
Charges for services
Operating grants and

contributions
Capital grants

Total program revenues

General Revenues
Taxes
Governmental aid
Investments
Recapture
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Changes in net position

LAST 10 YEARS

CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1
CHANGES IN NET POSITIOI

(Unaudited

2013 2012 2011 2010

$ 17,288,797 $ 17,486,377 $ 16,765,568 $ 16,355,136
1,355,030 1,301,515 1,162,602 1,069,416
10,910,251 11,676,364 12,118,677 9,074,607

- 2,934,382 2,824,583 2,737,299

- 350,446 - -

802,959 803,904 747,581 737,048
953,469 41,760 25,172 28,414
31,310,506 34,594,748 33,644,183 30,001,920
305,276 674,716 655,859 679,486
2,939,298 3,960,845 4,074,920 3,694,212
1,122,270 970,573 12,630,341 12,817,780
4,366,844 5,606,134 17,361,120 17,191,478
35,521,556 34,348,744 29,057,277 45,521,368
30,580 41,854 53,801 101,835
(5,217,195) (5,268,576) (708,299) (17,259,281)
392,315 162,363 32,291 16,960
35,094,100 34,890,519 45,796,190 45,572,360

$ 3,783,594 $ 295,771 $ 12,152,007 $ 15,570,440
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

$ 13,695,178 $ 11,669,817 $ 13,143,082 $ 12,264,231 $ 10,208,395 $ 9,904,881

1,247,277 1,249,827 1,008,269 838,941 948,078 910,740
9,100,576 8,499,619 7,919,040 6,458,814 6,991,170 5,952,548
2,746,942 2,698,414 2,440,668 1,850,407 1,678,861 1,220,465
671,628 634,728 568,918 527,918 447,057 443,539
16,324 18,609 28,999 37,318 34,276 23,147
27,477,925 24,771,014 25,108,976 21,977,629 20,307,837 18,455,320
742,499 792,177 689,107 634,962 502,934 455,094
2,954,095 2,434,756 2,868,543 2,066,508 1,766,328 1,671,474
3,696,594 3,226,933 3,557,650 2,701,470 2,269,262 2,126,568
34,716,336 36,020,500 36,411,660 30,539,387 19,990,833 12,539,109
- - - 468,744 1,315,988 2,274,087
119,043 215,601 280,974 364,168 100,655 43,989
(8,135,913) (8,425,945)  (14,436,820)  (11,790,054) (3,500,549) -
(12,666) 92,768 6,104 131,218 (200,000) 19,073
30,383,394 31,129,857 25,819,568 22,414,933 19,976,189 17,002,826

$ 2905469 $ 6,358,843 $ 710,592 $ 437,304 $ (331,648) $ (1,452,494)
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUND:
LAST 10 YEARS

General Fund
Unspendable
Restricted
Unassigned

Total General Fund

All Other Governmental Funds
Restricted
Major Maintenance Fund
Depreciation Fund
Repair and maintenance
Debt service
BOCHES
Committed
Capital Construction Fund
Unassigned
Grant Fund
Other Governmental Funds

(Unaudited
201: 201z 2011 201C
$ 30,270 $ 26,076 $ 55,226 $ 58,892
60,000 120,000 - 1,404,486
5,089,356 5,148,385 4,966,604 2,972,790
$ 5179,626 $ 5294461 $ 5,021,830 $ 4,436,168
$ 1,564,524 $ 1,101,928 $ 1,011,721 $ 744,292
4,465,994 2,765,654 2,753,839 2,728,042
838,759 27,516,850 - -
24,949,992 - - -
- 3,611,007 3,582,385 3,869,084
663,679 4,293 133,041 132,960
51,743 52,505 42,961 (11,268)
32,534,691 $ 35,052,237 $ 7,523,947 $ 7,463,110

Total all other governmental funds $
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200¢ 200¢ 2007 200¢ 200t 200/

$ 41269 $ 33,840 $ 33,841 $ 37,416 $ 404566 $ 202,500

4,172,576 4,582,897 2,610,849 2,785,370 3,570,551 3,343,629

$ 4213845 $ 4,616,737 $ 2,644,690 $ 2,822,786 $ 3,975,117 $ 3,546,129

$ 694056 $ 1,116,574 $ 1,177,729 $ 934482 $ 237,265 $ 563,543
1,600,000 - - - - -

2,651,551 2,466,255 1,885,545 1,422,477 1,017,342 860,671
139,822 147,225 59,752 ; ] )
27,053 86,102 22,929 - ; ;

) ] - 9,574 45,635 3,586

$ 5112,482 $ 3,816,156 $ 3,145,955 $ 2,366,533 $ 1,300,242 $ 1,427,800
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST 10 YEARS

(Unaudited
2013 2012 2011 2010
Revenues
Taxes $ 32,463,713 $ 32,090,098 $ 26,453,598 $ 43,720,800
Intergovernmental revenues 6,717,793 6,438,873 18,957,325 17,760,655
Charges for services 47,078 403,431 390,845 416,481
Investment income 30,393 41,509 53,078 100,900
Miscellaneous 132,543 483,136 29,844 22,032
Public contributions - 145,000 5,000 -
Repayment to State Foundation - - (29,924) -
Recapture payment (5,217,195) (5,268,576) (708,299) (17,259,281)
Total revenues 34,174,325 34,333,471 45,151,467 44,761,587
Expenditures
Instruction 16,574,141 17,972,732 17,404,217 15,956,965
Support services 14,576,448 16,825,144 26,867,033 13,581,537
Facilities acquisition and construction - - - 12,856,190
Debt service
Principal 743,756 268,442 154,883 152,192
Interest 1,051,355 51,462 26,071 28,612
Total expenditures 32,945,700 35,117,780 44,452,204 42,575,496
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 1,228,625 (784,309) 699,263 2,186,091
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 931,578 188,059 81,547 1,100,000
Transfers (out) (1,181,578) (338,059) (171,547) (1,180,000)
Proceeds from sale of assets - 28,519 - -
Proceeds from bond issuance - 26,500,000 - -
Proceeds from bond premium - 1,664,073 - -
Proceeds from capital lease - 542,638 37,236 466,860
Total other financing sources (uses) (250,000) 28,585,230 (52,764) 386,860
Net changes in fund balances 978,625 27,800,921 646,499 2,572,951
Fund balance
Beginning of year 40,346,698 12,545,777 11,899,278 9,326,327
Prior period adjustment (3,611,007) - - -
Fund balances, beginning of year
as restated 36,735,691 12,545,777 11,899,278 9,326,327
Change in inventory - - - -
End of year $ 37,714316 $ 40,346,698 $ 12,545,777 $ 11,899,278
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
$ 32,681,790 31,861,617 $ 31,138,943 $ 23,797,293 15,112,694 $ 10,670,936
5,915,332 7,333,440 9,142,655 8,832,472 4,232,534 7,521,614
460,550 470,220 405,770 408,935 278,955 237,685
118,149 214,071 270,175 354,591 - -
20,683 94,482 33,287 138,390 136,732 82,782
(54,878) (31,648) (119,322) - - -
(8,135,913) (8,425,945)  (14,436,820)  (11,790,054) - -
31,005,713 31,516,237 26,434,688 21,741,627 19,760,915 18,513,017
15,192,569 13,399,286 14,431,652 11,714,390 11,354,415 10,922,989
14,051,794 12,310,094 11,566,331 9,555,236 6,234,885 6,210,446
931,154 2,820,415 537,125 1,738,151 872,552
199,948 254,281 256,323 326,578 238,851 110,774
17,102 19,913 30,770 38,327 34,276 23,147
30,392,567 28,803,989 26,285,076 22,171,656 19,600,578 18,139,908
613,146 2,712,248 149,612 (430,029) 160,337 373,109
1,600,000 85,568 353,421 - - -
(1,640,000) (155,568) (83,130) (63,336) (48,000) (250,000)
320,288 - - 415,803 158,498 675,367
280,288 (70,000) 270,291 352,467 110,498 425,367
893,434 2,642,248 419,903 (77,562) 270,835 798,476
8,432,893 5,790,645 5,189,319 5,275,359 4,976,484 4,195,014
- - 184,998 - - -
8,432,893 5,790,645 5,374,317 5,275,359 4,976,484 4,195,014
- - (3,575) (8,478) 28,040 (17,006)
$ 9,326,327 8,432,893 $ 5,790,645 $ 5,189,319 $ 5275359 $ 4,976,484
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

(Unaudited)
Total County 10 year Percent
Estimated Per Capita Percent Growth  Estimated Personal change in Total
Year  Population Personal Income Personal Income Income (1) Personal Income
2001 15,185 $ 26,418 84 $ 401,164 5.6
2002 15,224 27,068 2.5 412,083 2.7
2003 15,183 28,741 6.2 436,381 5.9
2004 15,185 29,894 4.0 453,940 4.0
2005 15,012 34,599 15.7 519,399 14.4
2006 15,042 37,697 9.0 567,032 9.2
2007 15,397 39,408 4.5 606,770 7.0
2008 15,564 43,132 9.4 671,300 10.6
2009 15,720 39,556 (8.3) 621,821 (7.4)
2010 15,834 38,291 (3.2) 606,298 (2.5)
2011 15,786 41,165 7.0 649,829 6.7
2012 15,666 44,882 9.0 703,119 8.2
2013 * * * * *

(1) Total personal income estimates are in thousahdollars,
not adjusted for inflation

Source: US Department of Commerce Bureau of Econdmalysis
Carbon County, U.S. Bureau of Census 2010

* Information not available
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1
CAPITAL ASSET FACILITIES INFORMATION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2013

(Unaudited)
Year of Original Enroliment Average Age of
Building Construction Square Footage 10/2010 Building (in years)
Elementary Schools
Mountain View (1) 1949 30,436 - 64
Sinclair 1936 10,865 36 77
Rawlins Elementary K-1
(Highland Hills) 1982 36,228 262 31
Rawlins Elementary K2-5 2011 986,358 503 2
Total 1,063,887
Middle Schools
Rawlins Middle School 1978 91,846 269 35
Total 91,846
High Schools
Rawlins High School 1957 230,325 444 56
Total 230,325
K-12 Building
Little Snake River 1972 55,837 119 41
Total 55,837
Other Buildings
Administrative Office and
COOP High School 1949 28,270 18 64
Maintenance Facility 1978 6,758 35
Stadium 1982 23,659 31
Bus Garage Rawlins 1976 21,250 37
Bus Garage Baggs 1980 4,500 33
Track Storage Baggs 1987 1,772 26
Total 86,209

(1) Building to be demolished 2013-14
Many buildings have undergone remodels or addit&nse original construction
Source: Wyoming School Facilities Division, Carl@ounty School District #1 records
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1
OPERATIONAL STATISTICS
LAST 10 YEARS
(Unaudited)

Nutritional Services Program

Breakfast
General Fund Pt
Year Student
Ended General Fund Operational Free or
June 30 Students (1) Operational Costs Costs Paid Reduced
2004 1664 $ 13,887,965 $ 8,346 * *
2005 1727 15,408,441 8,922 $ 2,192 % 9,752
2006 1753 17,555,105 10,014 4,367 13,960
2007 1815 20,470,192 11,278 5,701 14,255
2008 1787 20,323,183 11,373 11,703 15,469
2009 1803 22,350,690 12,396 7,566 11,173
2010 1822 22,829,775 12,530 7,588 18,217
2011 1856 24,836,562 13,382 5,338 11,056
2012 1826 25,791,535 14,125 10,953 25,899
2013 186¢ 26,016,001 13,942 12,816 25,208

(1) Fall Enrollment
Source: Wyoming Department of Education and Cafounty School District #1 records

* Information not available
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Nutritional Services Program

Lunch
Free or Students Free andPercent of Total

Paid Reduced Total Meals Reduced Enrollment
* * * 479 29
$ 67,408 $ 60,981 $ 140,333 521 30
88,020 71,246 177,593 493 28
106,908 68,180 195,044 506 28
119,509 69,714 216,395 550 31
102,472 79,006 200,217 718 40
94,968 90,379 211,152 680 37
93,498 90,428 200,320 669 36
51,043 128,848 216,743 648 35
81,914 72,920 192,858 636 35
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1
OPERATIONAL STATISTICS (CONTINUED)
LAST 10 YEARS
(Unaudited)

Student Transportation

Students Percent of
Year Ended June Transported Students (ADM)

30 Total Buses Total Miles Daily Transported
2004 54 327,903 608 35.91
2005 53 305,581 492 29.84
2006 53 255,002 607 35.31
2007 39 229,399 610 35.88
2008 39 259,889 742 41.33
2009 39 234,510 741 41.06
2010 39 289,749 676 37.74
2011 39 309,793 652 35.12
2012 39 317,749 853 46.71
2013 39 310,936 930 51.90

(1) Fall Enroliment
Source: Wyoming Department of Education and Cabounty School District #1 records
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1
SCHOOL TAX LEVIES
LAST 10 YEARS

(Unaudited)

Year

Ended State School Mandatory Bond and Vocational

June 30 Foundation County Operating Interest BOCHES and Adult
2004 12.000 6.000 25.000 0.000 1.000 1.500
2005 12.000 6.000 25.000 0.000 1.000 1.500
2006 12.000 6.000 25.000 0.000 1.000 1.500
2007 12.000 6.000 25.000 0.000 1.000 1.500
2008 12.000 6.000 25.000 0.000 1.000 1.500
2009 12.000 6.000 25.000 0.000 1.000 1.500
2010 12.000 6.000 25.000 0.000 1.000 1.500
2011 12.000 6.000 25.000 0.000 1.000 1.500
2012 12.000 6.000 25.000 0.000 1.000 1.500
2013 12.000 6.000 25.000 0.000 1.000 1.500

Source: Wyoming Department of Education, Carbon&wdetwater Counties' Assessors
Office.
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Recreation Total
1.000 46.500
1.000 46.500
1.000 46.500
1.000 46.500
1.000 46.500
1.000 46.500
1.000 46.500
1.000 46.500
1.000 46.500
1.000 46.500

68



CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1
BONDED INDEBTEDNESS
LAST 10 YEARS

(Unaudited)

Year

Ended Assessed Amount Refunding Bonds

June 30 Valuation Debt Approved Bonds Issued Issued Refunded
2004 $ 549,273,641 $ - % - 8 - 3 - 8 -
2005 687,871,624 - - - - -
2006 951,619,394 - - - - -
2007 956,032,175 - - - - -
2008 976,170,512 - - - - -
2009 1,267,346,637 - - - - -
2010 766,843,510 - - - - -
2011 930,128,120 - - - - -
2012 947,268,208 26,500,000 26,500,000 26,500,000 - -
2013 796,683,212 26,025,000 - - - -

(1) Percent of capacity does not take county tmegi'sucash balances into account.
District can be bonded to 10% of assessed valuation

Source: Wyoming Department of Education, Carbon&ndetwater Counties' Assessors

Office.
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% of
Principal Interest Capacity
Paid Paid Debt 6/30 Obligated (1)

$ - $ - 3 : 0%
- - - 0%

- - - 0%

- - - 0%

- - - 0%

- - - 0%

- - - 0%

- - - 0%

- - 26,500,000 2.80%
475,000 972,473 26,025,000 3.27%
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1
HISTORICAL ASSESSED VALUATIONS
LAST 20 YEARS

(Unaudited)
Percent Increase
Year Ended June 30 Assessed Valuation (Decrease)

1994 $ 236,487,959 0.01
1995 217,005,083 -0.08
1996 232,813,739 0.07
1997 300,944,538 0.29
1998 319,890,530 0.06
1999 251,745,345 -0.21
2000 290,730,277 0.15
2001 538,717,857 0.85
2002 502,358,573 -0.07
2003 361,253,785 -0.28
2004 549,273,641 0.52
2005 687,871,624 0.25
2006 951,619,394 0.38
2007 956,032,175 0
2008 976,170,512 0.02
2009 1,267,346,637 0.3
2010 766,843,510 -0.39
2011 930,128,120 0.21
2012 947,268,208 0.018
2013 796,683,212 -.26

Source: Wyoming Department of Education, Carbon&wdetwater Counties' Assessors Office.

71



CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1
DETAIL OF CARBON COUNTY ASSESSED VALUATION

LAST 10 YEARS

(Unaudited)
Mineral Production
Agricultural Commercial Residential
Year Ended Lands & Lands & Lands & Total Real
June 30 Improvements Improvements Improvements Property Coal Natural Gas

2004 $ 8,568,490 $ 10,890,764 $ 41,591,055 $ 61,050,309 $ 7,142,514 $ 366,142,219
2005 8,574,397 11,810,099 45,856,394 66,240,890 3,051,584 447,125,250
2006 8,893,032 12,610,642 49,399,893 70,903,567 * 657,795,481
2007 8,495,565 13,197,917 61,643,389 83,336,871 * 586,480,586
2008 8,404,925 14,365,703 77,381,140 100,151,768 3,811,351 530,169,868
2009 8,689,890 17,647,288 80,585,225 106,922,403 6,749,862 744,469,866
2010 9,491,328 18,859,877 79,638,056 107,989,261 6,987,193 368,885,934
2011 10,270,109 19,760,603 81,412,747 111,443,459 2,352,305 482,176,186
2012 10,722,162 26,433,356 83,837,304 120,992,822 * 434,012,189
2013 11,544,187 20,765,727 88,603,820 120,913,734 * *

Source: Wyoming Department of Education, Carbon@ndetwater Counties' Assessors Office,

State Board of Equalization
* Information not available.
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Miscellaneous

Qil Minerals Total Minerals
$35,740,481 $ 307,513 $ 409,332,727
61,475,195 486,072 512,138,101
71,674,063 988,489 730,458,033

88,579,826 1,352,635 676,413,047
89,901,463 1,653,617 625,536,299
117,613,768 1,978,534 870,812,030
81,478,110 2,236,137 459,587,374
96,743,708 1,866,732 583,138,931
96,736,758 1,100,664 531,849,611

* * *



CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1
HISTORICAL ENROLLMENT
LAST 20 YEARS

(Unaudited)
Percent
Percent Increase Increase
Year as of 10/1  Students (1) (Decrease) Year as of 10/1  Students (1) (Decrease)
1994 2224 (0.05) 2004 1664 (0.04)
1995 2240 0.01 2005 1727 0.04
1996 2216 (0.01) 2006 1753 0.02
1997 2076 (0.06) 2007 1815 0.04
1998 1992 (0.04) 2008 1787 (0.02)
1999 1965 (0.01) 2009 1803 0.01
2000 1946 (0.01) 2010 1822 0.01
2001 1923 (0.01) 2011 1826 0.00
2002 1778 (0.08) 2012 1871 0.02
2003 1728 (0.03) 2013 * *

(1) Fall Enroliment
Source: Wyoming Department of Education
* Information not available
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1
AVERAGE STUDENT TO TEACHER RATIO
LAST 10 YEARS

(Unaudited)
Full-Time
Equivalent
Year as of 10/1  Students (1) Teaching Staff Ratio of Students to Teaching Staff

2004 1664 135 12.341
2005 1727 138 12.521
2006 1753 143 12.261
2007 1815 148 12.281
2008 1787 153 11.701
2009 1803 156 11.571
2010 1822 154 11.801
2011 1856 160 11.601
2012 1826 160 11.411
2013 1866 160 11.661

(1) Fall Enrollment
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1
VALUATION DOLLARS PER AVERAGE DAILY MEMBERSHIP (ADM)
LAST 10 YEARS

(Unaudited)

Year Ended June 30 ADM Valuation $ per ADM
2004 1693 $ 324,409
2005 1649 417,146
2006 1719 553,569
2007 1700 562,262
2008 1795 543,728
2009 1805 702,310
2010 1791 428,148
2011 1827 509,891
2012 1792 528,609
2013 1834 434,397

Source: Wyoming Department of Education
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1
STAFFING FULL TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE)

LAST 10 YEARS

(Unaudited)

Instructional

General Support

Year as of 10/1 Teachers Instructional AidSupport Staff Staff Total FTE
2004 134.27 11.34 40.83 72.43 258.87
2005 134.87 25.99 27.87 77.62 266.35
2006 137.91 31.98 30.81 76.76 277.46
2007 142.73 37.61 42.87 79.72 302.93
2008 147.84 35.77 35.64 82.05 301.3
2009 152.79 35.32 39.62 75.58 303.31
2010 154.40 44.59 47.69 84.36 331.04
2011 159.72 29.55 64.87 74.22 328.36
2012 160.37 25.47 69.20 74.35 347.22
2013 * * * *

Source: Wyoming Department of Education
*Information not available
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FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE REPORTS
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARI
Year Ended June 30, 2(C

Pass throuc

Grantor:
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Number: CFDA % Expenditure
U.S. Department of Agricultu
Passed through Wyoming Department of Educ
Child Nutrition Cluste
School Breakfast Progre - 10.55: $ 53,200
National School Lunch Progré - 10.55¢ 253,35:
National School Lunch Program - US|
Commoditie - 10.55¢ 30,26(
Total Child Nutrition Cluste 336,81:
Summer Food Service Program for Chilc - 10.55¢ 8,78:
Child and Adult Food Care Progr - 10.55¢ 1,940
Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Progi 10.58: 35
Total U.S. Department of Agricultu 347,571
National Endowment for the Al
Passed through the Wyoming Arts Cou
Promotion of the Arts Partnership Agreem - 45.02¢ 3,00(
Passed through the Wyoming Humanities Council
Promotion of the Humanities Federal/State Partiigrsh - 45,250 2,373
Passed through the Wyoming Humanities Council
Promotion of the Humanities Federal/State Partiigrsh - 45,129 1,708
Total National Endowment for the Arts 7,081
U.S. Department of Educati
Passed Through Wyoming Department of Educ
Title 1, Part A Cluste
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agenc - 84.0104 1,875
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agenc - 84.0104 92
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agenc 1204012T1A0 84.0104 134,880
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agenc 1304013T1A0 84.0104 724,535
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agenc - 84.0104 12,435
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agenc - 84.0104 39,604
Total Title I, Part A Cluste 913,42:
Special Education Cluster
Special Education - Grants to St: 110401VIBO( 84.0274 1,121
Special Education - Grants to St: 12040127610 84.0274 10,86¢
Special Education - Grants to St: 13040137610 84.0274 398,95t
410,94.
Special Education - Preschool Grants, 110401VIBP0084.173A 832
Special Education - Preschool Grants, 1201012T690084.173A 8,252
Special Education - Preschool Gra 1304013T690 84.173F 5,77¢
14,85¢
Total Special Education Cluster 425,801
Vocational Education - Basic Grants to St 1204012VEAO! 84.048# 24,81(
Vocational Education - Basic Grants to St 1304013VEAO! 84.048# 45,03¢
69,84¢
(Continued
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINAD)

Year Ended June 30, 2(C

Pass thr
Grantor:
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Number: CFDA # Expenditure
US Department of Education (continu
English Language Acquisition Gra 1204012T3EO 84.365/ 1,338
English Language Acquisition Gra 1304013T3EO 84.3654 13,28¢
14,62:
Improving Teacher Quality State Gre 1204012T2A0 84.36" 71,37
Improving Teacher Quality State Gre 1304013T2A0  84.367F 120,42:
191,79!
School Improvemel 12040123GIAI 84.37" 126,80!
School Improveme 84.37" 39,39¢
166,20t
Total U.S. Department of Education 1,781,690
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of
Substance Abuse - 93.959 6,180
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human
Service 6,18(
2,142,521

Notes
(1) Schedule of was prepared on the cash k

(2) The value of non-cash awards for USDA commeditvas $30,26

(3) During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013[tis&rict transferred $25,000 from Improving Tear

Quality grant, CFDA 84.367 to Title | Cluster, CR[B34.010
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PORTER, MUIRHEAD, CORNIA & HOWARD

(A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants)

MC

123 West First Street  Suite 800 P.O. Box 2750 Casper, Wyoming 82602  (307) 265-4311 Fax (307) 265-5180

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTINGND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMNTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITHGOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Superintendent and Members
of the Board of Trustees

Carbon County School District #1

Rawlins, Wyoming

We have audited, in accordance with the auditiagddrds generally accepted in the United Statésrarica
and the standards applicable to financial auditg#ained inGovernment Auditing Standardssued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the faoi@nstatements of the governmental activities, ibhsiness-
type activities, the discretely presented componmit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaihingd
information of Carbon County School District #1, afsand for the year ended June 30, 2013, andetiated
notes to the financial statements, which colletyiveomprise Carbon County School District #1's basi
financial statements, and have issued our reperétm dated December 12, 2013.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the finaatatements, we considered Carbon County Schistiidd
#1's internal control over financial reporting émal control) to determine the audit procedurest #re
appropriate in the circumstances for the purposexpfessing our opinions on the financial statesyamit not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on thectéiffeness of Carbon County School District #1trinal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinionthe effectiveness of Carbon County School Ris#il’'s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal contraéxists when the design or operation of a contoalsdnot allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing tlasisigned functions, to prevent, or detect andectrr
misstatements on a timely basis.material weaknes$s a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
internal control, such that there is a reasonabksipility that a material misstatement of the tgigtifinancial
statements will not be prevented, or detected amcected on a timely basis. gignificant deficiencyis a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, iteimal control that is less severe than a matesmakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those chairgith governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for theiled purpose described in the first paragrapthisf section
and was not designed to identify all deficienciasiriternal control that might be material weaknesee
significant deficiencies. Given these limitatiodsying our audit we did not identify any deficieegiin internal
control that we consider to be material weakneddesiever, material weaknesses may exist that havbaen
identified.
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Honorable Superintendent and
Board of Trustees

Carbon County School District #1

Page 2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance aboutheheCarbon County School District #1's financial
statements are free from material misstatemenpeavfrmed tests of its compliance with certain jBimns of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreemaots;ompliance with which could have a direct aratamal
effect on the determination of financial statemamiounts. However, providing an opinion on compleandth
those provisions was not an objective of our awadit] accordingly, we do not express such an opiribe
results of our tests disclosed no instances of sroptiance or other matters that are required toeiperted
underGovernment Auditing Standards

We noted certain matters that we reported to manageand the Board in a separate letter dated Dezreh?,
2013.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to descrila gbope of our testing of internal control and clemnge and
the results of that testing, and not to providegimion on the effectiveness of the entity’s introontrol or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of aditperformed in accordance withovernment Auditing
Standardsin considering the entity’s internal control anmimpliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

ftiy Pluihead) o ¥ o]

Porter, Muirhead, Cornia & Howard
Certified Public Accountants
Casper, Wyoming
December 12, 2013
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(A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants)

123 West First Street  Suite 800 P.O.Box 2750 Casper, Wyoming 82602  (307) 265-4311 Fax (307) 265-5180

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRANND REPORT ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To the Honorable Superintendent and Members
of the Board of Trustees

Carbon County School District # 1

Rawlins, Wyoming

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Carbon County School District #Ompliance with the types of compliance requiremment
described in th©MB Circular A-133 Compliance Suppleméhat could have a direct and material effect on
each of Carbon County School District #1's majatei@l programs for the year ended June 30, 201thoGa
County School District #1's major federal prograane identified in the summary of auditor’s resskstion of
the accompanying schedule of findings and questicosts.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with tguirements of laws, regulations, contracts, arahtgr
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on cliamge for each of Carbon County School Districts#thajor
federal programs based on our audit of the typeofpliance requirements referred to above. We wched
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditstgndards generally accepted in the United States
America; the standards applicable to financial uclintained irfsovernment Auditing Standardssued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMEB@ar A-133,Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit OrganizationsThose standards and OMB Circular A-133 requiat tie plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether ngliemwe with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and niahteffect on a major federal program occurred. drit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence aBatlton County School District #1's compliance vihbse
requirements and performing such other procedwwgegaconsidered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonablés as our opinion on compliance for each majorefied
program. However, our audit does not provide alleigéermination of Carbon County School Districts#1
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Carbon County School District #1ngaied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above thatdchale a direct and material effect on each ofriggor
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013.
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Honorable Superintendent and
Board of Trustees

Carbon County School District #1

Page 2

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Carbon County School District #1esponsible for establishing and maintaining effecti
internal control over compliance with the typescompliance requirements referred to above. In prenand
performing our audit of compliance, we consideretb©on County School District #1's internal contoser
compliance with the types of requirements that @ddwdve a direct and material effect on each majderal
program to determine the auditing procedures thatappropriate in the circumstances for the purpafse
expressing an opinion on compliance for each mfaderal program and to test and report on intecnatrol
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular 231 but not for the purpose of expressing an opiio
the effectiveness of internal control over compimnAccordingly, we do not express an opinion oa th
effectiveness of Carbon County School District #titernal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over complian@xists when the design or operation of a contraro
compliance does not allow management or employieethe normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, nomd@nce with a type of compliance requirement déderal
program on a timely basis. Aaterial weakness in internal control over comptiaris a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal controleoxcompliance, such that there is a reasonabléhildgshat
material noncompliance with a type of complianoguireement of a federal program will not be preveniar
detected and corrected, on a timely basissighificant deficiency in internal control over cplianceis a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, ieimal control over compliance with a type of coiapte
requirement of a federal program that is less s\vhan a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attenbigrihose charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over comptianwas for the limited purpose described in thet fir
paragraph of this section and was not designedenwtify all deficiencies in internal control ovesropliance
that might be material weaknesses or significaficidéacies. We did not identify any deficienciesiimernal
control over compliance that we consider to be nateveaknesses. However, material weaknesses Risty e
that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control osempliance is solely to describe the scope oftesting of
internal control over compliance and the resultshat testing based on the requirements of OMBUEircA-
133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable foryaother purpose.

Yty Mluihead) o b i)

Porter, Muirhead, Cornia & Howard
Certified Public Accountants

Casper, Wyoming
December 12, 2013
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Section | — Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weaknesses identified? No

Significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be material
weaknesses? No

Noncompliance material to financial statements didte No

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:

Material weaknesses identified? No

Significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be material
weaknesses? No

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for

major programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are requiredé¢o b

reported in accordance with section 510 (a)

of Circular A-133? No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Nutrition Cluster

10.553 National Breakfast Program

10.555 National School Lunch Program

10.555 Commodities

Title | Cluster

84.010A Title | Grants to Local Educational Agi&rsc
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between

type A and type B programs: $ 300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No

85



CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINDIE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

None

Section Il - Federal Award Findings and QuestionedCosts

None
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CARBON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

SA-2012-01
U.S. Department of Education
Passed through State of Wyoming Department at&iibn

84.410 — Education Jobs Fund - ARRA

Criteria

OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State andchbGovernments, Attachment B, section h.8. sttitat
where employees work on multiple activities or aalgjectives, a distribution of their salaries orgea will be
supported by personnel activity reports or equivaiocumentation. Such documentary support isiredu
where employees work on (a) more than one federatdy (b) a federal award and a non-federal aw@jdan
indirect cost activity and a direct cost activifd) two or more indirect activities which are akded using
different allocation bases, or (d) an unallowaldtvity and a direct or indirect cost activity. Bennel activity
reports or equivalent documentation must meet tiwing standards (a) must reflect an after-the-fa
distribution of the actual activity of each empleygb) must account for the total activity for wihieach
employee is compensated, (c) must be preparedast fronthly and must coincide with one or more pay
periods, and (d) budget estimates or other digtdbipercentages determined before the servicegeafermed
do not qualify as support for charges to federahraw but may be used for interim accounting purpose
provided (i) the governmental unit's system foabbshing the estimates produces reasonable appativins

of the activity actually performed, (ii) at leastagterly, comparisons of actual costs to budgetstiilsutions
based on the monthly activity reports are madecasts charged to Federal awards to reflect adjugsmeade
as a result of the activity actually performed nheyrecorded annually if the quarterly comparisdmsisthe
differences between budgeted and actual costessetthan ten percent; and (iii) the budget estsnateother
distribution percentages are revised at least gugrif necessary, to reflect changed circumstance

Condition

Federal award money was used to compensate empjdyaeever, the payroll charges were not suppdrted
documentation as prescribed in OMB Circular A-8he District had two individuals whose time charded
the grant was based on budget and no comparisaotwél cost based on monthly activity reports tddated
distribution was made. One of those individuat$ mbt have a time and effort log or semi-annudifaeations
to support time allocated to the grant.

Status
Condition has been corrected.
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